
If you require an adjustment to enable you to participate or access the meeting, please 
contact the Democratic Services team at least 48 hours before the meeting. 

ASHFIELD DISTRICT COUNCIL  
 
 

Council Offices, 
Urban Road, 

Kirkby in Ashfield 
Nottingham 
NG17 8DA 

 

Agenda 

 

Planning Committee 

 

Date: Wednesday, 6th October, 2021 

Time: 10.00 am 

Venue: 
Council Chamber, Council Offices, Urban Road, 
Kirkby-in-Ashfield 

 

 

For any further information please contact: 
 

Lynn Cain 
 

lynn.cain@ashfield.gov.uk 
 

01623 457317 

 

Public Document Pack



If you require an adjustment to enable you to participate or access the meeting, please 
contact the Democratic Services team at least 48 hours before the meeting. 

Planning Committee 

Membership 

 

Chairman: Councillor Sarah Madigan 

Vice-Chairman: Councillor Andy Meakin 

 
Councillors:  
Samantha Deakin Arnie Hankin 
Rachel Madden Lauren Mitchell 
Phil Rostance Helen-Ann Smith 
Jason Zadrozny  

 
 
 

FILMING/AUDIO RECORDING NOTICE 

 
This meeting may be subject to filming or audio recording. If you have any queries 
regarding this, please contact Members’ Services on 01623 457317. 
 
 
 
 

SUMMONS 

 
You are hereby requested to attend a meeting of the Planning Committee to be held at the 
time/place and on the date mentioned above for the purpose of transacting the business 
set out below. 
 
 
 

 
Theresa Hodgkinson 
Chief Executive 



 

 

AGENDA Page 
 
1.   To receive apologies for absence, if any.  

 
 

 

2.   Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary or Personal Interests 
and/or Non-Registrable Interests.  
 
 

 

3.   To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of a 
meeting of the Committee held on 25 August 2021.  
 
 

5 - 10 

4.   To receive and consider the attached planning applications.  
 
 

11 - 88 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

Meeting held in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, Urban Road, Kirkby-in-Ashfield, 
 

on Wednesday, 25th August, 2021 at 10.00 am 
 
 

Present:  
 

Councillor Sarah Madigan in the Chair; 

 Councillors Samantha Deakin, Rachel Madden, 
Andy Meakin, Lauren Mitchell, Phil Rostance, 
John Smallridge (as substitute for Arnie Hankin), 
Helen-Ann Smith and Jason Zadrozny. 
 

Apology for Absence: Councillor Arnie Hankin. 
 

Officers Present: Lynn Cain, Louise Ellis, Mick Morley, 
Ashley Patel, Christine Sarris and Robbie Steel. 
 

In Attendance: Councillor John Wilmott. 

 
 
 

P.9 Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary or Personal Interests 
and Non-Registrable Interests 
 

 Councillors Lauren Mitchell, Phil Rostance and Jason Zadrozny all declared 
Non-Registrable Interests in respect of Application V/2021/0354, Thackeray 
Associates, Goal Storage Enclosure, Kenbrook Road Playing Field, Kenbrook 
Road, Hucknall.  Their interests arose from the fact that they had previously 
spoken with the applicant and some objectors, but in doing so had not 
expressed any opinions at any point. 
 
 

P.10 Minutes 
 

 RESOLVED 
that the minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held on 21 July 
2021, be received and approved as a correct record. 
 
 

P.11 Town and Country Planning Act 1990: 
Town Planning Applications Requiring Decisions 
 

 Prior to consideration of the applications and in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule 4 (Order of Business), the Chairman advised that she would 
be considering the second application, V/2021/0354 Goal Storage Enclosure, 
Kenbrook Road Playing Field, Kenbrook Road, Hucknall, as the first item. 
Committee Members concurred with this course of action. 
 
1.  Application V/2021/0354, Thackeray Associates, Goal Storage 
Enclosure, Kenbrook Road Playing Field, Kenbrook Road, Hucknall 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

 

(In accordance with the Council’s Constitution and the Members’ Code of 
Conduct, Councillors Lauren Mitchell, Phil Rostance and Jason Zadrozny had 
previously declared Non-Registrable interests in respect of this application. 
Their interests were such that they stayed in the meeting and took part in the 
discussion and voting thereon.) 
 
In accordance with the Council’s Policy for dealing with late matters in relation 
to planning applications, (Minute No. D4.17, 1993/94 refers), officers 
proceeded to give a verbal report as to additional comments received in 
relation to the application as follows:- 
 
One additional objection had been submitted from a resident who had already 
objected on previous occasions, and no new issues were raised in this latest 
set of comments. 
 
This changed the total representations received throughout the consideration 
of this application and across all 4 consultations as follows: 
 
752 representations received from 549 residents 
678 objected to the proposal 
72 supported the proposal 
2 neither objected to or were in support of it. 
 
Pete Davies, as an objector, the applicant Jamie Brough, and Councillor John 
Wilmott who called-in the application, took the opportunity to address the 
Committee in respect of this matter. As per the agreed process, Members 
were then offered the opportunity to clarify any points raised during the 
submission as required. 
 
It was moved and seconded that conditional consent be granted as per 
officer’s recommendation subject to an additional condition as follows: 
 
Condition 
Prior to the goal storage enclosure being brought onto site, a hedgerow shall 
be planted on the east side of the enclosure, in accordance with the details to 
first be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Following the completion of the development and for a period of five years, if 
any section of the hedgerow dies, are removed or become seriously damaged 
or diseased, shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a 
similar size and species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written 
consent to any variation. 
 
Reason: To help the development assimilate into the surroundings. 
 
2.  Application V/2020/0832, Platform Housing Ltd, Application for 
Approval of Reserved Matters following Outline Approval V/2018/0213 - 
Proposed Residential Development of 47 Dwellings Including the 
Demolition of Existing Buildings, The Quarry, 57 Stoneyford Road, 
Sutton in Ashfield 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



 

 

In accordance with the Council’s Policy for dealing with late matters in relation 
to planning applications, (Minute No. D4.17, 1993/94 refers), officers 
proceeded to give a verbal report as to additional comments received in 
relation to the application as follows:- 
 
An additional two objections had been received from neighbouring residents. 
The issues raised were covered within the report. However, one of the issues 
had disagreed with the committee report stating there would be an adverse 
impact to No. 22 Mount Pleasant from a loss of privacy overshadowing and 
loss of daylight (especially in the evening). It had been further stated that it did 
not meet the separation distance of 21m in the Councils SPD and that there 
was no guarantee that existing vegetation would remain. It was stated that 
bungalows would be more preferable. 
 
Officer Response  
It was considered that the proposal would not result in a loss of light, 
overshadowing or loss of privacy to No.22 Mount Pleasant. This was due to 
the substantial land level difference and separation distance. The acceptability 
of this relationship would be discussed in greater detail and demonstrated 
during the presentation. 
 
Pete Davies, as an objector, took the opportunity to address the Committee in 
respect of this matter.  As per the agreed process, Members were then offered 
the opportunity to clarify any points raised during the submission as required. 
 
It was moved and seconded that the application be deferred to enable officers 
to discuss matters further with the applicant and surrounding residents, in 
relation to plots 28-30, and be brought back to committee at the earliest 
opportunity. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 11.20am and reconvened at 11.30am. 
 
3.  Application V/2021/0445, Mr I Glen, Outline Application with all Matters 
Reserved for a Maximum of 2 Dwellings, Land at Linby Boarding 
Kennels, Church Lane, Hucknall 
 
In accordance with the Council’s Policy for dealing with late matters in relation 
to planning applications, (Minute No. D4.17, 1993/94 refers), officers 
proceeded to give a verbal report as to additional comments received in 
relation to the application as follows:- 
 
The applicant had agreed to pay reasonable contributions towards public open 
space, education and health, as part of a Section 106 Agreement which took 
account of the 9 dwellings previously approved at the wider site.  The amount 
payable had not yet been agreed and would be subject to further discussions 
to reach appropriate contributions. 
  
The applicant had not agreed as yet in relation to the provision of affordable 
housing, as they were in discussions with the Council’s Housing Team as to 
the expected likely requirements for affordable housing. 
 
 
 

Page 7



 

 

It was moved by Councillor Jason Zadrozny and seconded by Andy Meakin 
that: 
 
a) officer’s recommendation contained within the report be rejected and 

planning consent be granted subject to a satisfactory S106, appropriate 
conditions and referral to the secretary of state. 

 
b) delegated authority be granted to the Assistant Director, Planning and 

Regulatory Services, in consultation the Planning Committee Chairman, to 
negotiate and agree the most appropriate S106 contributions and 
conditions for the site. 

 
Reasons for rejecting officers’ recommendation: 
The wider assessment of the site and it’s viability as a whole would lead to 
securing appropriate infrastructure through S106 contributions.  This would 
result in a development site that would be more sustainable. 
 
For the motion: 
Councillors Samantha Deakin, Sarah Madigan, Lauren Mitchell, Andy Meakin, 
Phil Rostance, John Smallridge, Helen-Ann Smith and Jason Zadrozny.  
 
Against the motion: 
None. 
 
Abstentions: 
None. 
 
4.  Application V/2021/0497, Mr C Chambers, Full Planning Consent for 
Two Detached Dwellings with Associated Access and Car Parking, 344-
348 Land Rear of Watnall Road, Hucknall 
 
In accordance with the Council’s Policy for dealing with late matters in relation 
to planning applications, (Minute No. D4.17, 1993/94 refers), officers 
proceeded to give a verbal report as to additional comments received in 
relation to the application as follows:- 
 
The applicant had submitted information in respect of 4 other sites within the 
District suggested to be similar to the application site and these have been 
considered by officers. However, it was considered that these sites were not 
similar to the application site and every application should be determined on its 
individual planning merits. 
 
Max Cully, for the applicant, took the opportunity to address the 
Committee in respect of this matter. As per the agreed process, Members 
were then offered the opportunity to clarify any points raised during the 
submission as required. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Phil Rostance and seconded by Councillor Jason 
Zadrozny that the officer’s recommendation contained within the report be 
rejected and planning consent be granted, subject to the following standard 
conditions and removal of any permitted development rights; 
 
 

Page 8



 

 

Conditions 
 
1. The development hereby approved shall be begun before the expiration of 

3 years from the date of this permission. 
 
2. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development)(England) Order 2015, as amended, relating to 
Classes A-E of Part 1 of Schedule 2, the dwellings shall not be enlarged, 
improved, altered nor shall any building be erected incidental to the 
enlargement of the dwelling house. No development shall be undertaken 
without permission of the Local planning authority. 

 
Reasons for rejecting officers’ recommendation: 
It is considered by the planning committee that the application does not 
negatively affect the surrounding area and the condition will prevent any 
further issues. 
 
For the motion: 
Councillors Samantha Deakin, Lauren Mitchell, Andy Meakin, Phil Rostance, 
John Smallridge, Helen-Ann Smith and Jason Zadrozny.  
 
Against the motion: 
None. 
 
Abstentions: 
Councillor Sarah Madigan. 
 
 

P.12 Planning Appeal Decisions 
 

 Members were asked to note the recent Planning Appeal decisions as outlined 
in the report. 
 
RESOLVED 
that the report be received and noted. 
 

 
 
 
The meeting closed at 12.05 pm  
 

 
 
Chairman. 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



s/planning/admin/procedures/iplanmanual/backgourndpapers 

BACKGROUND PAPERS AND AVAILABILITY OF PLANS 
 
Under the terms of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
the Authority is required to list the background papers used in preparing all 
recommendations relating to planning applications. 
 
The background papers forming the planning application file include: 
 
A Planning Application file, incorporating consultation records, site 

appraisal and records of meetings and telephone conversations. 
 
B Planning Policy 
 
C Local Resident Comments 
 
D Highway Authority Consultation 
 
E Environmental Health (ADC) 
 
F Severn Trent Water plc/Environment Agency 
 
G Parish Council 
 
H Local Societies 
 
I Government Circulars/PPGs 
 
J Listed Building Consultees 
 
K Other 
 
L Viability Information  
 
 
Letters received prior to preparation of the Agenda are summarised to 
indicate the main points and incorporated in the Report to the Members.  Any 
comments received after that date, but before 3pm of the day before 
Committee, will be reported verbally. 
 
The full text of all correspondence is available to Members. 
 
Due to Covid-19 Background Papers are only available to view online. 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



 

s/planning/committee/sitevisit 

 

Site Visits Planning Committee 

 

 

Members will be aware of the procedure regarding Site Visits as outlined 

in the Councils Constitution. 

Should any Planning Committee Member wish to visit any site on this 

agenda they are advised to contact either the Director – Place and 

Communities or the Assistant Director Planning and Regulatory Services 

by 5pm 1st October 2021. 

This can be done by either telephone or e-mail and should include the 

reason as to the request for the site visit. The necessary arrangements 

will then be made to obtain access to the site or an objector’s property, if 

such is required. 

Members are asked to use their own means of transport and observe 

social distancing guidance time and date to be arranged. 

 

 

D. Lawrence 

Interim Director – Place and Communities  

Tel: 01623 457365 

E-mail: David.lawrence@ashfield.gov.uk 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 6th October 
 2021 

S:\planning\Committe\CommiteeMeetings\2021\October  

 
 

 

Page App No Applicant Recommendation Proposal Location 

Carsic 
17-58 V/2020/0784 C Rowe Approve Outline Application for a Residential 

Development. 
Land West Off 
Fisher Close 
Sutton in Ashfield 

Kingsway 
59-66 V/2021/0388 Mr S Pall-

Coates 
Refuse Change of Use from Residential to 

Residential and Childminding 
54 Oxford Street 
Kirkby in Ashfield 

Stanton Hill & Teversal 
67-80 V/2021/0421 I Taylor & H 

Hemstock 
Approve Change of Use of Agricultural Land 

to Camping Lodges and Parking 
Together with the Creation of a New 
Access 

Fackley Farm 
Fackley Road 
Teversal 
Sutton in Ashfield 

Underwood 
81-88 V/2021/0558 Mr S Lewis Approve Chimney Flue The Mews Barn 

Land at The Triangle 
Felley Mill Lane South 
Underwood 

P
age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Ashfield District Council © Crown copyright and database right 2021. Ordnance Survey 100024849

MAP SCALE 1:
CREATED DATE:

2000
07/07/2021

V/2020/0784

Page 17



 

COMMITTEE DATE 06/10/2021 WARD Carsic 
  
APP REF V/2020/0784 
  
APPLICANT Carol Rowe  
  
PROPOSAL Outline Application for a Residential Development. 
  
LOCATION Land West Off, Fisher Close, Sutton in Ashfield, Notts, NG17 

2AA 
 
WEB LINK 
 

 
https://www.google.com/maps/@53.1358778,-1.2741042,17.26z  

BACKGROUND PAPERS A B C D E F J 
 
App Registered  16/11/2020  Expiry Date 15/02/2021 
       
Consideration has been given to the Equalities Act 2010 in processing this 
application. 
 
This application has been referred to Planning Committee by Cllr Helen Smith on 
the grounds of residential amenity and highways safety. 
 
The Application  
 
The application was deferred at the last planning committee to seek further information 
and clarifaction on a number of matters. A response to each of these issues is set out 
below: 
 
Highways  
 
A primary concern of Members during the Planning Committee was that the 
Committee Report’s assessment of the proposal’s impact on the Fisher 
Close/Stoneyford Road junction, and specifically cars turning right out of Fisher 
Close, was not clear and they wanted further clarification regarding these impacts 
before making a decision.    
 
The applicants Highway Consultants have prepared an updated statement to 
address this issue. Based on traffic surveys undertaken at the junction in November 
2019, and taking into account general traffic growth from the 2019 base, traffic from 
committed developments in the area, and traffic movements generated by the 
proposed development, the highways consultants have calculated the morning peak 
hour traffic movements at the junction in 2025. 
 
The modelling shows that in the morning peak hour, the Fisher Close/Stoneyford 
Road junction will remain well within its capacity, there will be minimal queueing, and 

Page 18

https://www.google.com/maps/@53.1358778,-1.2741042,17.26z


the time taken to turn right out of Fisher Close will increase by an average of just 2 
seconds compared to the no-development scenario (i.e. without the application 
development). It will remain within ‘normal’ levels for a junction of this type.   
 
The document also confirms the purpose of the proposed ghost island right turn 
lane. This is not required to overcome any deficiency in the existing layout, but is 
proposed in order to reduce the likelihood of vehicles turning right into fisher close 
from blocking the free flow of traffic along the B6028 Stoneyford Road. The provision 
of this ghost island will also slow traffic, prevent overtaking (through the introduction 
of pedestrian refuges), and enable pedestrians to cross the road.  
 

Reference was also made to an application for residential development just to the 
north of the application site which was refused and dismissed at appeal (LPA 
reference V/2014/0108).  It is notable that rather than a fundamental concern about 
highway safety in this area, in that case the concerns about the proposal on highway 
grounds stemmed from a lack of detail regarding possible traffic calming or an 
analysis of vehicle turning movements, which made it impossible to make a 
reasoned assessment as to whether adequate visibility splays could be provided, or 
whether the proposal would cause conflict with traffic from nearby junctions.   
 
This is a very different situation to this application at Fisher Close which is supported 
by comprehensive highway justification including traffic flow calculations, detailed 
junction improvements plans and consideration of the relationship of the site access 
with the proposed access to further residential development to the south. 
 
Crucially, the Highways Authority have not objected and without detailed technical 
evidence to rebut the information supplied by the applicant, a refusal on highways 
safety grounds could not be sustained. 
 
Anti-social Behaviour 
 
Additional comments have been sought from the Police Architectural Liaison Officer, 
whom has since been to visit the site. The following comments have been received: 
 
As you can see from previous comments the worry the residences have is obviously 
ASB. The areas of concern -  where the potential pedestrian walk way is being 
considered - could have CCTV installed as long as certain measures are put in 
place:  
 

1. The CCTV needs to be linked to the district council system and monitored  
2. The foliage within the area needs to be maintained regularly  
3. The area has to have the appropriate lighting  
4. The pedestrian footpaths needs to have the barrier restrictions installed so it 

prevents vehicles from entering the park.  
5. CCTV cameras could also be installed at the junction of Carsic lane , 

Northwood lane , Stanton crescent as long they are linked to the district 
council monitoring system. 

Page 19



 
It is considered that an additional condition can be applied for the applicant to submit 
details of CCTV and appropriate barrier restrictions at reserved matters stage. The 
issue of lighting and maintenance are already covered via existing recommended 
planning conditions. The lighting strategy will need to ensure a delicate balance of 
providing security, but protecting ecology at the same time.   
 
In terms of proposed CCTV on the junction of Carsic Lane, Northwood lane, Stanton 
Crescent. This will need to take the form of a contribution within the Section 106 
Agreement. The Councils Community Protection team have advised of the costs 
involved and also welcomed the addition of CCTV here. This will be a sum of 
£16,500 covering the device itself, installation, connection and maintenance costs. 
 
During the meeting queries were raised about the location of the public open space 
on the basis that it is too close to existing houses and could become a hot spot for 
antisocial behaviour.  It is important to remember that the location of the public open 
space is not for determination at this outline stage and will be agreed upon, in 
consultation with residents, at the future reserved matters stage. The Council will 
have full control over its location and there is ample space within the site for this to 
be repositioned.  
 
An additional condition is also recommended for the applicant to submit a statement 
showing how the development has taken into account of Secured by Design 
Principles at reserved matters stage. This will ensure that the layout takes account of 
opportunities to reduce crime.  
 
Healthcare and Education Contributions  
 
Nottinghamshire County Council Education Authority have been reconsulted 
following the planning committee. NCC have confirmed they do not currently have a 
site identified for a new primary school in Sutton. This is in part because any new 
school is conditional upon further housing growth in Sutton. It is anticipated that this 
issue could be addressed through the local plan process, once they have an 
understanding of the level of growth proposed.  
 

For now, the baseline position remains that contributions should be secured towards 
a new school due to the amount of development being proposed through outstanding 
planning applications. Clearly, it is possible that the demand for a new school will not 
materialise; it depends on the level of housing that is eventually permitted. In 
essence, it isn’t necessarily the case that a school site needs to be in place in order 
for this application at Fishers Close to be determined – the current pupil projection 
data does display a reasonable level of surplus capacity.  
 
The site falls within the catchment areas of Brierley Forest Primary and Healdswood 
Infants. At present, the figures show there are spaces in each of these schools and 
as such the development could be supported by existing infrastructure. However, 

Page 20



this does not negate the need for a planning contribution as set out in the rationale 
provided by NCC.  
 
In respect of healthcare, comments from the NHS Clinical Commissioning Group 
refer to Skegby Family Medical Centre, Willowbrook Medical Practice, and Kings 
Medical Practice as the closest healthcare practices and states that the healthcare 
contribution requested will contribute towards the reconfiguration or extension of 
these premises or the provision of a new GP surgery.  This is the normal way in 
which such contributions are sought and can be secured via the S106. This would 
not form a basis for refusing the application.  
 
Waste Audit  
 
Members also queried why a Waste Audit has not been undertaken.  The main 
purpose of waste audits is to demonstrate that waste will be minimised as far as 
possible during the construction and operational phases.  Without the scale of the 
scheme and the details of its construction having been agreed, it is difficult to provide 
accurate and appropriate measures to secure these aims.  Moreover, waste audits 
are much better undertaken by the developer/contractor who will be building out the 
scheme when the scale and layout of the scheme has been fixed.  All of the above 
being the case, it will be more appropriate in this case for the waste audit to be 
provided as part of the reserved matters application. This is already subject to a 
recommended condition (condition 12).  
 
Biodiversity  
 
A Member raised a query over a resident comment about the site being part of a 
SSSI. However, this is not the case as the site has no ecological designation. The 
nearest statutorily designated site is Brierley Forest Park Local Nature Reserve. To 
minimise any potential impacts of the development, a buffer has been recommended 
along the border as set out in the original Committee Report.  
 
Recommendation:  - Approve subject to the conditions and contributions set 

out on the original report (attached), along with the 
following additional contribution and conditions: 

 
 

• £16,500 – Towards CCTV at the junction of Carsic lane , Northwood lane , 
Stanton Crescent 

 
CONDITIONS 
 

22. The details submitted in accordance with condition 1 shall include the location of 
CCTV cameras and barrier restrictions at appropriate locations on pedestrian 
footpaths. 

 

Page 21



23.  The details submitted in accordance with condition 1 shall be accompanied by a 
Secured by Design Statement setting out how the details of the design and 
layout takes account of opportunities to reduce crime. 

 
 
REASONS 
 
22. In the interests of reducing anti-social behaviour and crime.  
 
23. In the interests of reducing anti-social behaviour and crime. 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 22



 

COMMITTEE DATE 21/07/2021 WARD Carsic 
  
APP REF V/2020/0784 
  
APPLICANT Carol Rowe  
  
PROPOSAL Outline Application for a Residential Development. 
  
LOCATION Land West Off, Fisher Close, Sutton in Ashfield, Notts, NG17 

2AA 
 
WEB LINK 
 

 
https://www.google.com/maps/@53.1358778,-1.2741042,17.26z  

BACKGROUND PAPERS A B C D E F J 
 
App Registered  16/11/2020  Expiry Date 15/02/2021 
       
Consideration has been given to the Equalities Act 2010 in processing this application. 
 
This application has been referred to Planning Committee by Cllr Helen Smith on the 
grounds of residential amenity and highways safety 
 
The Application 
 
This is an Outline Planning Application that seeks to reserve all matters for future 
consideration save for ‘means of access’, which is submitted in detail at this stage. The 
means of access would be taken from the end of Fisher Close with upgrades being 
provided at the junction of Stoneyford Road/Fisher Close in the form of a ghost right turn 
lane and pedestrian refuge. The revised illustrative masterplan shows a total of 84 
dwellings could be accommodated at the site, along with an area of public open space and 
wildflower meadow to the north.  
 
The following plans and documents have been considered in the basis of this decision: 
 

• Location Plan Dwg No. 20/206-100 
 

• Illustrative Layout Plan Dwg No. 20/206-103A 
 

• Site access via end of Fisher Close ADC1017-DR-002 
 

• Access Junction Layout ADC1017-DR-003 Rev. P1  
 

• Design and Access Statement (Amended) 
 

Page 23

https://www.google.com/maps/@53.1358778,-1.2741042,17.26z


• Flood Risk Assessment and Indicative Drainage Strategy prepared by NeoFlood 
Ltd;  

 

• Landscape Visual Appraisal undertaken by Influence Environmentally Ltd;  
 

• Preliminary Ecological Appraisal prepared by RammSanderson Ecology Ltd;   
 

• Biodiversity Impact Assessment prepared by RammSanderson Ecology Ltd; 
 

• Transport Assessment and Travel Plan prepared by ADC Infrastructure Ltd.  
 

• Travel Plan prepared by ADC Infrastructure Ltd Version 6 dated 10/06/2021 
 

• Response to Highways Comments by ADC Infrastructure Ltd 
 
The Site  
 
The application site extends to some 3.6ha and comprises paddock land with a small 
cluster of equestrian buildings in the centre. The site is bound by residential development 
to the south and east and is immediately adjacent to, but beyond, the Main Urban Area of 
Sutton-in-Ashfield, as defined on the Council’s 2002 Policies Map. To the north and west, 
the site runs alongside the the edge of Brierley Forest Park, a Local Nature Reserve and 
Country Park.  
 
The boundary of the Teversal, Stanton Hill and Skegby Neighbourhood Plan (NP) runs 
through the site.  Therefore, the Neighbourhood Plan policies will be applicable in relation 
to the northern part of the site. Map 12 of the NP identifies the site as being allocated in 
the emerging Local Plan Publication Draft. However, the Local Plan in question was 
subsequently withdrawn by the Council from examination in September 2018. As such this 
carries no weight.  
 
Consultations 
 
A site notice and press notice have been posted together with individual notification of 
surrounding residents. The following are summaries based on the latest position of each 
consultee: 
 
A.D.C Conservation Officer 
 
No objections. The accompanying Desk-Based Assessment demonstrates there are no 
designated heritage assets or non-designated heritage assets in close proximity to the 
application site.  
 
A.D.C Planning Policy 
 

Page 24



The development plan comprises the saved policies within the Ashfield Local Plan Review 
2002 (ALPR) and the policies within the Teversal Stanton Hill and Skegby Neighbourhood 
Plan (TSS NP).  This is an application for housing and the Council does not have a 5-year 
housing supply. In these circumstances, NPPF paragraph 11d, provides that planning 
permission should be granted unless any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly 
and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF 
taken as a whole.   
 
The proposed development is located in the Countryside as defined by the ALPR Policy 
ST4 and the Proposals Map. It does not fall within the definition of appropriate 
development, and consequently does not meet the policy requirements of EV2.  However, 
the NPPF sets out a more flexible approach to rural housing in paragraph 77 and 78 and 
to the rural economy in paragraph 83.  
 
The TSS NP identifies in Policy NP 4 “The character and quality of the green corridors 
between Stanton Hill and Skegby and between Teversal and Stanton Hill (see Maps 10 to 
15) are sensitive as they prevent coalescence between the settlements and provide 
opportunities for biodiversity.” Map 12 identifies the area in question with the application 
site being identified as a proposed allocation in the Local Plan 2016 which was 
subsequently withdrawn.  However, the Landscape and Visual Appraisal submitted with 
the application concludes that the development of the site would have little effect on the 
separation of these settlements as the openness of the site is not perceivable within the 
landscape.   
 
Therefore, policies in the development plan, which are protective of countryside must be 
had regard too but have to be weighed in the context of the availability of housing sites in 
the ALPR, the provisions of the NPPF on rural housing and the position on the 5 year 
housing supply. 
 
Other Matters 
 
ADC policy comments also contain additional policy background in respect of issues of 
biodiversity, landscape impact, flooding, heritage, affordable housing, housing design, 
density, mix, climate change, infrastructure provision, highways and minerals.  
 
A.D.C Landscaping  
 
According to the Greater Nottinghamshire Landscape Character Assessment the site is in 
the DPZ ML021 - Brierley Forest Park whose character is predominantly man-made 
landform, following the restoration of the former colliery. The urban area is a common land 
form throughout the DPZ and the proposed housing development would therefore not be 
out of character within the area. 
 
The LVA demonstrates that the site is contained and enclosed by the existing residential 
area and woodland edge of Brierley Forest Park. The relevant landscape actions for the 
DPZ are to enhance and manage large blocks of developing woodland, as they will 

Page 25



contribute to a wooded landscape character in the future…This can be achieved by the 
landscape buffer between the proposed development and Brierley Forest Park along the 
western boundary. The proposed footpath links from the development site and Brierley 
Forest Park need to be sufficiently well designed. These should incorporate Ashfield 
District Council's standard chicane style access. 
 
The applicant would need to provide details of all boundary treatments and hedgerows to 
be retained. This is of particular importance along the western boundary to ensure the 
proposed development is screened from views from Brierley Forest Park. A tree survey is 
required and details of how the retained tress are to be protected during construction 
should be recorded on the plan.  
 
A landscaping plan will need to be provided, along with maintenance details of the buffer 
area and amenity space. A sustainable urban drainage solution will also be required with 
the use of swales. The development proposal could also be enhanced by incorporating the 
indicative pedestrian link through to Stanton Crescent.  
 

To make the development acceptable in planning terms, s106 contributions for off-site 
POS and public realm improvements would be required, as follows: 
 
£252k POS for Brierley Forest Park for improvements to the play areas, car parks, 
entrances, footpaths and general landscape improvements. This is to include a 
maintenance payment (2.5% of £252k = £6,300 a year; £94,500 over 15 years). So a total 
of £157,500 capital and £94,500 maintenance 
 
A.D.C Environmental Health  
 
Request that no development shall be permitted to commence on the site until an air 
quality assessment has been prepared. 
 
Clinical Commissioning Group  
 
A development of this nature would result in increased service demand and all practices in 
the area are working at capacity. Accordingly, the proposal would trigger the need to 
provide health related section 106 funding amounting to £46,601.25 which is proportionate 
to the housing development size. The contribution would be invested in enhancing 
infrastructure capacity. The plans will include either reconfiguration, or extension of 
existing premises, or a new build that the S106 money will contribute towards. 
 
Environment Agency  
 
The site lies fully within flood zone 1 and therefore we have no fluvial flood risk concerns 
associated with the site. There are also no other environmental constraints associated with 
the site.  
 
Natural England  
 

Page 26



No comments. 
 
Nottinghamshire Wildlife Trust  
 
Have reviewed the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal report (PEAR) and can confirm the 
ecology survey and report has been undertaken according to good practice guidelines. 
NWT are satisfied with the resulting conclusions. Attention has also been drawn to a 
number a matters relating to potential invasive species, the ecology buffer, landscaping 
planting, precautionary methods for hedgehogs, protecting the Stanton Hill LWS, lighting 
and the provision of Landscape Ecological Management Plan.  
 
Nottinghamshire County Council [NCC]  
 
The County Councils comments set out the policy position in respect of Waste, Minerals, 
Transport and Education. The county planning context is set out below: 
 
NCC Minerals  
 
The site lies within the Mineral Safeguarding and Consultation Area for limestone in the 
emerging Minerals Local Plan (July 2019). However, considering the proposal is within an 
urban area, the County Council do not consider the development to be inappropriate in this 
location. Although, it must be demonstrated there is a sound argument of the need for non-
mineral development and that the practicality of prior extraction has been fully considered. 
 
NCC Waste  
 
The proposal is unlikely to pose a sterlisation risk to the nearest waste facility at Mitchells 
of Mansfield. It would be useful if the application was supported by a waste audit.  
 
NCC Strategic Transport  
 
No specific observations. 
 
NCC Travel and Transport  
 
A bus stop infrastructure contribution of £23,000 is required to provide improvements to 
the following bus stops  
 

• AS0457 Carsic Road Shop –Both-ways bus stop pole and polycarbonate bus 
shelter  

• AS0712 Carsic Road Shop – No infrastructure  

• AS0483 Stoneyford Road - Clear Channel non-advertising polycarbonate bus 
shelter  

• AS0485 Stoneyford Road - Bus stop pole 
 
No contributions have been sought towards local bus service provision.  

Page 27



 
NCC Education  
 
The proposed development of 86 dwellings on the above site would yield an additional 18 
primary and 14 secondary aged pupils. 
 
Primary 
 
Based on current pupil forecasts, there is a projected surplus of places in the Sutton Town 
primary planning area and the impact of the proposed development alone would not lead 
to a deficit in provision of primary places. However the NCC have been consulted on 
additional applications, which would lead to a deficit.  
 
In order to create additional places in the Sutton Town Primary Planning Area resulting 
from the cumulative impact of this application and other applications (if approved), a new 
primary school and site is required.  
 
The County Council therefore requests a contribution based on the cost per pupil of 
providing a new school, which is £370,656 (18 places x £20,592 per place) and for 
provision for a new primary school site in Sutton Town. 
 
Secondary 
 
Based on current data there is a projected surplus of places in the planning area and the 
impact of the development would not lead to a deficit in provision. The County Council will 
therefore not be seeking contributions towards secondary education at this time. 
 
NCC Public Health  
 
Have provided advice and guidance on assessing planning applications to ensure any 
developments promote health and wellbeing.  
 
NCC Local Lead Flood Authority  
 
No objections, subject to condition relating to drainage.  
 
NCC Rights of Way  
 
No objections.  
 
NCC Highways Authority   
 
The Highway Authority (HA) has reviewed the latest information submitted and provided 
the following comments: 
 
Stoneyford Road/Fisher Close access  

Page 28



 
An ancillary plan, Access Junction Layout (drg. no. ADC1017-DR-003 Rev. P1), has been 
provided which demonstrates how this proposal will integrate with the proposed access 
opposite should that development be provided at a later date as previously requested.  
 
The visibility splays of 2.4m x 123m to the north of the access and 2.4m x 84m to the 
south east of the access have been demonstrated on drg. ADC1017-DR-003 Rev. P1.  
 
Traffic Impact on the local highway network  
 
The applicant has agreed to the installation of MOVA and CCTV at the junctions of 
Mansfield Road/Priestsic Road/Downing Street and Mansfield Road/Dalestorth 
Street/Outram Street.  
 
Sustainable Transport Options  
 
It is acknowledged within the email from ADC Infrastructure dated 10 June 2021 that 
upgrades to the bus stops on Stoneyford Road are appropriate and that the contribution of 
£23,000 has been noted.  
 
Following on from the comments made by Transport & Travel Services colleagues in the 
previous comments dated 13/05/21, the potential pedestrian route at the south of site, 
through to Stanton Crescent, and shown on the illustrative layout plan, no. 20/206-103, is 
welcomed to provide a pedestrian link to ensure connectivity with the adjacent community. 
This option should be strongly pursued and comprehensively planned as part of this 
development at reserved matters stage to ensure this can be provided.  
 
Travel Plan  
 
A revised Travel Plan has been produced by ADC Infrastructure ref. ADC1017-RP-C 
Version 6. All outstanding matters highlighted by colleagues within NCC Transport 
Strategy in April 2021 have now been addressed and the Travel Plan (TP) is now 
acceptable. The arrangements contained within the TP will need to be secured by way of a 
S106 agreement. 
 
Finally, a number of conditions and informative notes have been recommended by the 
Highways Authority.  
 
Police Architectural Liaison Officer  
 
Should this application progress to a full submission Nottinghamshire Police will seek 
clarity on the following aspects of the design; the proposed lighting of private driveways 
and vehicle parking, proposed security of waste bin storage and also proposals for 
residential cycle storage. At this stage with little detail of internal design it is difficult to 
comment further on design. 
 

Page 29



Teversal, Skegby and Stanton Hill Neighbourhood Forum  
 
Object on the following basis: 
  

1. Green Corridor  
Whilst we recognise that this potential development was included in the Local Plan, we 
also note that the proposal, as set out in the Neighbourhood Plan, did not go beyond the 
hedgerow alongside Fisher Close.  This proposal now encroaches into the green corridor 
between Stanton Hill and Skegby which we believe, and set out in our Neighbourhood 
Plan, needs to be preserved. They remain concerned about this aspect even following the 
submission of a revised illustrative masterplan.  
 

2. Highways Safety 
Noting the other potential developments in the immediate vicinity, we are most concerned 
at the further high level of traffic movement and the ingress and egress of vehicles on and 
off Stoneyford Road, particularly from Fisher Close and Carsic Road. This is especially 
concerning with Quarrydale Secondary School, which creates considerable random 
parking at times, exacerbating the dangers even with present levels of traffic.    
 

3.     Schools and Health Facilities  
There is a total lack of sufficient education and health facilities in the area to absorb the 
level of increased need that this development would create.  Unless these issues are 
properly addressed then the whole social infrastructure will be in danger of collapse.  
 

4.     Lack of consultation  
Despite the inclusion of pre-application consultation with the Neighbourhood Forum, in the 
Neighbourhood Plan, they were not consulted at pre-application stage.  
 

5.     Design proposals re carbon neutrality  
Desire to comment on the design characteristics and nature of the proposed houses, 
which are set out in our Neighbourhood Plan, especially in terms of the developers 
intentions regarding the extent to which they would build in proposals for carbon neutrality 
and open space.  
 
Local Community Representations  
 
22 Individual households have written a total of 33 letters of objection, their comments 
have been summarised below: 
 
Impact on the Environment (Biodiversity, Pollution, Loss of Green Space) 

• Proposed site borders a Nature Reserve and is unsuitable for development. 

• Site is part of the Teversal Pastures SSSI and should not be developed on. 

• Site is adjacent to Site of Importance for Nature Conservation (SINC) and 
development would be detrimental. 

• Land is identified as a green corridor in the Teversal, Stanton Hill and Skegby 
Neighbourhood Plan and should not be developed. 

Page 30



• Green Belt land should not be developed. 

• Owls, foxes, badgers, hedgehogs and many species of bird including Skylarks 
inhabit the site and will be impacted by development. 

• Hedgehogs frequently seen in surrounding gardens and their population will decline 
if development goes ahead. 

• Artificial lighting will disrupt the wildlife, particularly bats which are a protected 
species. 

• General loss of wildlife and habitat disruption that is irreversible.  

• Some local flora and fauna are protected or endangered and their habitats should 
be conserved. 

• The proposed wildflower meadow does not resolve the issue of development 
encroaching the green corridor. 

• The character of Brierley Park, a green flag awarded area, will be destroyed. 

• Green spaces and nature trails are key to health and wellbeing of local residents 
and should not be developed. 

• Proposed houses would irreversibly destroy the green space and wildlife in the 
area. 

• Noise and air pollution from vehicles coming to and from the estate. 

• Pollution of Nature Reserve and water courses during construction process. 

• Development will destroy the peace and quiet of the area, a reason many moved 

there in the first place. 

 
Impact on the character and appearance of the area 

• Destroys the open character of the area and the semi-rural views for current 

residents. 

• The view from Brierley Park will be housing, instead of the existing green space. 

• Green corridor keeps settlements separate and gives them their own sense of 

place, thus should remain undeveloped. 

• Loss of green space and character will impact future generations. 

Flooding and Drainage 

• Sewage system is inadequate and cannot handle the additional foul waste that will 

be created. 

• Residents have previously been told by their housing developer that there would be 

no building on surrounding sites due to insufficient capacity of sewerage system. 

• Impermeable surfaces will increase risk of flooding in the area. 

• Local water shortages in the summer which development will exacerbate. 

• Surface water will no longer have fields to soak into – where will this go? 

• Concern of flooding neighbouring properties as development is 2-3m higher than 

surroundings. 

Highways Safety and Access 

• The local roads will not cope with the influx of traffic the development will bring 

Page 31



• Junction of Stoneyford Road and Fisher Close is already dangerous to pull out of 

due to limited visibility from parked cars and speeding traffic. 

• Have previously had accidents at this junction and they are likely to increase with 

more cars in area. 

• Accessing Stoneyford Road during rush hour or school hours is already problematic 

and more traffic would exacerbate this. 

• Development doesn’t have own access so construction traffic will go through Fisher 

Close. 

• Fisher Close is a narrow road due to parking – unsuitable for construction traffic. 

• Rose and Crown customers use surrounding roads as a car park so development 

will cause more parking issues 

• Emergency vehicles will not be able to easily access new site or existing properties 

with extra congestion and parking. 

• Driveways can be difficult to access and will be exacerbated by more on-street 

parking 

• Construction traffic will damage the roads and create noise and mess – who will fix 

this? 

• Children frequently play in the road of Fisher Close as it is a cul-de-sac and traffic 

will endanger them  

• Suggestion that access to the site should be via Stanton Crescent instead  

Impact of the development on infrastructure and services  

• Residents already have long waiting times for GP surgeries and dentists in the 

area. 

• School places may be impacted by the development. 

• Shops and amenities in Stanton Hill will be stretched. 

• Loss of green space for residents to enjoy. 

• No playground nearby for children and loss of Fisher Close as a dead end for 

children to play. 

Other Comments 

• Already a new development near Brand Lane / Fackley Way so is this development 

needed? 

• Housing developments already proposed on Newark Road, Alfreton Road, Ashland 

Road, Clare Road and Stubbin Hill Farm 

• Antisocial behaviour may increase, and residents’ perception of safety may be 

harmed. 

• Property prices and saleability of existing properties may be compromised. 

• Concerns over loss of privacy and loss of light to existing properties. 

• Development may impact water pressure in surrounding properties. 

• Residents did not know about the plans and did not receive notification letters from 

the Council. 

Page 32



• Plans have been changed yet residents were not given a written response or time 

to comment. 

• Many planning applications have been submitted in this area and they should not 

be considered in isolation. 

• An application for this was already submitted and rejected in 2016 and applications 

similar to this one have already been refused 

• Building works will generate noise and disrupt residents, particularly those working 

from home 

• Construction traffic will generate dust and mud which will particularly impact 

windows and parked cars 

• Brownfield sites should be developed first 

• Many cats and other pets in the area will be in more danger due to increased traffic 

• Potential radon pollution from the ground being disrupted during construction. 

Policy 
Having regard to Section 38 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 the main 
policy considerations are as follows: 
 
Policy Context 
 
Ashfield Local Plan Review (ALPR) 2002 as amended by "saved policies" 2007.  
The following ALPR ‘saved’ policies are considered relevant to the application: 
 

• Policy ST1: Development. 

• Policy ST2: Main Urban Area 

• Policy ST3: Named Settlements 

• Policy ST4: Remainder of the District. 

• Policy EV2: Countryside.  

• Policy EV6: Sites of Importance for Nature Conservation. (Now known as Local 
Wildlife Sites). 

• Policy EV8: Trees and woodlands. 

• Policy HG3: Housing density.  

• Policy HG4: Affordable Housing. 

• Policy HG5: New residential development. 

• Policy HG6: Open space in residential developments.  

• Policy TR2: Cycling provisions in new development. 

• Policy TR3: Pedestrians and People with limited mobility.  

• Policy TR6: Developer contributions to transport improvements. 
 
Teversal, Stanton Hill & Skegby  Neighbourhood Plan (2016-2031) (TSS NP). The 
following neighbourhood plan policies will be applicable to the application: 
 

• NP1: Sustainable Development. 

• NP2: Design Principles for Residential Development. 

• NP3: Housing Type. 

Page 33



• NP4: Protecting the Landscape Character.  

• NP6: Improving Access to the Countryside. 

• NP8: Improving Digital Connectivity  
 
Material Considerations 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) policies relevant to the application are: 

• Part 2: Achieving sustainable development 

• Para 11: Sustainable Development. 

• Part 5: Delivering a sufficient supply of homes.  

• Para 64 Affordable Housing requirements 

• Part 8: Promoting healthy and safe communities. 

• Part 9: Promoting sustainable transport. 

• Part 11: Making effective use of land. 

• Part 12: Achieving well designed places. 

• Part 14: Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change. 

• Part 15: Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 
 
The NPPF at para. 3 identifies that the NPPF should be read as a whole including its 
footnotes and annexes.       
 
National Planning Policy Guidance (PPG) brings together national planning guidance on 
various topics. 
 
ODPM Circular 06/2005 Biodiversity and Geological Conservation  
 
Supplementary Planning Documents 
 

• Residential Design Guide SPD 2014. 

• Residential Car Parking Standards 2014 
 
National Guidance 
 

• The National Design Guide (2020),  

• National Model Design Code (2021)  

• Building for a Healthy Life (2020),  

• LTN120 (2020),  

• Gear Change (2020) and  

• Manual for Streets 2 (2010), 
 
Legislation 
 

• Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 section 40 duty “to have 
regard” to the conservation of biodiversity in England. 

 

Page 34



Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) 
 
The development proposed falls within the description at 10B of Schedule 2 of the EIA 
Regulations (2017). Accordingly, a screening exercise has been undertaken. Whilst, there 
may be some impact on the surrounding area as a result of this development, it would not 
be of a scale and nature likely to result in significant environmental impact. As such, an 
EIA is not required. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
 

• V/2008/0310 – Change of use of agricultural land (sui generis) to paddock land (sui 
generis), including the erection of a field shelter comprising 4 stables and ancillary 
store. Withdrawn. 

• V/2008/0495 – Change of use of agricultural land (sui generis) to paddock land (sui 
generis), including the erection of a field shelter comprising 4 stables and ancillary 
store. Conditional Consent 25/09/2008. 

 
The Council records indicate that no other applications for residential development have 
been considered at this site.  
 
Comment : 
 

1. The principle of development; 

2. Landscape and Visual Impact Appraisal; 

3. Conservation and Ecology; 

4. Flooding and Drainage; 

5. Housing Density and Mix; 

6. Residential amenity;  

7. Highway Safety; 

8. Developer Contributions; 

9. Other Issues;  

10. Planning Balance and Overall Conclusions 
 

1. The Principle of Development  
 
Legislation requires that the application be determined in accordance with the statutory 
development plan, unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. Therefore, 
the starting point for decision making are the policies set out in the following: 
 

• Ashfield Local Plan Review 2002 (ALPR) (saved policies), and  

• Teversal, Stanton Hill and Skegby Neighbourhood Plan.   
 
The NPPF sets out the governments planning policies and is a material consideration in 
planning decisions. The NPPF does not change the statutory status of the development 
plan for decision-making, but provides guidance for decision takers in determining 

Page 35



planning applications.  This will depend on the specific terms of the policies and of the 
corresponding parts of the NPPF when both are read in their full context.  An overall 
judgement must be formed as to whether development plan policies, taken as a whole, are 
to be regarded as out of date for the purpose of the decision1. 
 
The most relevant policies from the Teversal, Stanton Hill & Skegby (TSS) Neighbourhood 
Plan (2016-2031) are set out as follows: Policy NP1 seeks to ensure that development is 
sustainable by reference to economic, social and environmental matters, high quality 
design, and housing meeting identified local need. Policies NP2 and NP3 deal with design 
principles and housing type, both of which can be controlled at reserved matters stage. 
Amongst other things, Policy NP4 seeks to ensure that landscaping within development 
proposals enhances landscape character where possible, whilst maintaining access to the 
surrounding countryside. It is noted that the Neighbourhood Plan boundary runs through 
the site and as such an area of the southern part is not contained with the plan area.  
 
In terms of the ALPR, the proposal needs to be considered against policy ST1, which 
seeks to ensure a good fit for development with regard to: amenity, highway safety & 
capacity and compatibility across local plan policies. The ALPR Policies ST2, ST3 and 
ST4 set out the Council’s approach in the Plan to the future physical form of the District. 
The site in question is within the countryside as defined by the ALPR and set out in the 
Proposals Map. In this context, Policy ST4 identifies that outside the Main Urban Areas 
and Named Settlements permission will only be given for sites allocated for development, 
or development appropriate to the Green Belt or Countryside. Therefore, in relation to the 
application site, one of the key policies in the ALPR is Policy EV2 (The Countryside).   
 
Policy EV2 identifies that planning permission will only be given for ‘appropriate’ 
development and development that is located and designed so as not to adversely affect 
the character of the countryside and its openness. None of the forms of ‘appropriate’ 
development are applicable in relation to the proposed application.  Consequently, the 
proposal is contrary to Policy EV2.    
 
The ALPR plan period was to 2011.  However, this does not mean that existing policies 
are out-of-date simply because they were adopted or made prior to the publication of the 
NPPF. They must be considered against their consistency with the NPPF (NPPF para. 
213): 
 
In this regard, as policy ST4 is restrictive of development outside the main urban areas 
and named settlement it lacks the balancing exercise required by the NPPF. It is therefore 
considered to be inconsistent with it. Policy EV2 has some consistency with the NPPF’s 
requirement to recognise the intrinsic beauty and character of the countryside. However, it 
is highly restrictive of development in the countryside, and again lacks the balancing 
exercise required. It is also clear, that the policies are not providing for sufficient housing 
for the district. As such, these policies are considered to be out of date .The outdatedness 
of these policies has also been established at appeal in the 2019 Beck Lane Appeal 

 
1 Wavendon Properties Limited v Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local Government & 
Anr. Case Number: CO/200/2019 

Page 36



Inquiry (PINs reference APP/W3005/W/18/3213342). These policies should therefore carry 
limited weight.  
 
In addition, for 2020/21 the five year housing supply at 1st April 2020 is 2.25 year based 
on a 20% buffer. As such the district has a significant housing shortfall. The Housing 
Delivery Test 2020 also indicates the delivery of housing in Ashfield is substantially below 
the housing requirements over the past three years. As a result, the tilted balance of 
paragraph 11 is engaged. This is a case where planning permission should be granted 
unless any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh 
the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF as a whole.  
 
However, as was recently confirmed by the Court of Appeal in Gladman vs SSCLG [2021] 
EWCA Civ 104, the triggering of the tilted balance neither automatically determines a 
planning application, nor allows for the primacy of the development plan to be 
circumvented and disregarded. There is still a requirement to carry out a full ‘balancing 
exercise’ of the adverse impacts and benefits of a development proposal. 
 

2. Landscape and Visual Impact Appraisal 

 
Paragraph 170 the NPPF identifies that planning decisions should contribute to and 
enhance the natural and local environment by protecting and enhancing valued 
landscapes and recognizing the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside. It is 
considered that the site is not a valued landscape for the purpose of the NPPF.  
 
Policy EV2 of the Ashfield Local Plan Review sets out protection for the character of the 
countryside and its openness. A Mature Landscape Area (ALPR Policy EV4) is located to 
the northern part of the site.  Policy EV4 seeks to ensure that development does not 
adversely affect the character and quality of Mature Landscape Areas. However, the 
application site covers only a small section of the wider area and the northern part of the 
site is shown to be retained as a wildflower meadow on the revised illustrative layout. This 
will be subject to a planning condition. Accordingly, it is considered that the development 
would not adversely affect the overall scale, character or quality of the Mature Landscape 
Area in accordance with Policy EV4 of the Local Plan 
 
Policy EV4 should be read in conjunction with the Greater Nottingham Landscape 
Character Assessment, undertaken in 2009.   The site area falls within ML21 Brierley 
Forest Park.   It identifies that this character area is a restored landscape which is heavily 
influenced by man. It includes the site of the former Sutton colliery spoil tip which is 
located close to the application site. The assessment concludes that the landscape 
condition and strength of character for ML21 are both moderate, with an overall landscape 
strategy to enhance. The urban area is a common land form throughout the DPZ and the 
proposed housing development would therefore not be out of character within the area. 
 
The application is supported by a Landscape Visual Appraisal by Influence Environment 
Limited. In terms of visual impacts, the LVA confirms that the site is well-enclosed and 

Page 37



visually contained. It identifies that the visual envelope of the site is limited by the following 
factors: 
 

• To the west by rising ground and vegetation to the former colliery spoil mound; 

• To the north by established vegetation; 

• To the south and east by settlement edge. 
 
The LVA goes onto assess high level views from the ridgeline of the former colliery spoil 
mound in Brierley Forest Park (para 7.31 – 7.37). It notes these views are already 
punctured by the perception of built form and the proposal will be read as an extension to 
the existing settlement. Close distance views from Brierley Park are also subject to the 
assessment. Here, it notes there are mature trees that screen views along the western 
edge and these views will be further screened by landscaped buffer along the western 
boundary. Which will enhance and reinforce the adjoining woodland at Brierly Park, as well 
as providing ecological benefits. The LVA does note that in winter months, whilst canopies 
are sparse and new boundary vegetation is still establishing, there may be views at close 
distance into the site and some appreciation of built form. However as there is appreciation 
of existing settlement edge, glimpsed views of buildings would not appear incongruous.  
 
The Councils Landscaping Officer has reviewed the LVA and has not raised any 
objections, commenting that it demonstrates the site is sufficiently contained and also that 
the proposed landscape buffer would run in line with the landscape actions contained 
within the Greater Nottingham Landscape Character Assessment 2009. 
 
Green Corridor  
 
The application has to be considered against TSS NP Policy 4 NP 4: Protecting the 
Landscape Character.  In particular comments have been raised by the TSS forum and 
local residents about the green corridor between Stanton Hill and Skegby. The TSS NP 
identifies in Policy NP 4: Protecting the Landscape Character, that “The character and 
quality of the green corridors between Stanton Hill and Skegby and between Teversal and 
Stanton Hill (see Maps 10 to 15) are sensitive as they prevent coalescence between the 
settlements and provide opportunities for biodiversity. Development is required to maintain 
this sense of openness.”   
 
Within this Plan, Policy NP4 (Map 9) notes that the northern section of the site is located in 
a green corridor, which extends in an east-west direction. It should also be noted that the 
existing housing on Fishers close sits within this area shown on Map 9. The Teversal, 
Stanton Hill & Skegby (TSS) Design Guide, which forms part of the Plan, recognises the 
northern section of the site as falling into the Green Gap between the South of Stanton Hill 
and the north of Skegby and considers the role of these Green Gaps in maintaining 
separation between settlements. 
 

The proposal will, however, not result in the development of the narrowest or most 
vulnerable part of the corridor as  identified on Map 11 of the NP. As whilst, the application 
site extends beyond the existing northern boundary of the built area of Fisher Close, the 

Page 38



illustrative layout identified that the northern area is proposed to be planted as a wildflower 
meadow. A condition requiring no development in this section of the site would ensure the 
narrowest part of the gap is protected.  
 
Map 12 also identifies the application site being identified as a proposed allocation in the 
Local Plan Publication 2016.  However, the Local Plan in question was subsequently 
withdrawn by the Council from Examination in September 2018.    
 
Finally, the LVA also assesses the impact on the green corridor, it summarises that ‘whilst 
the undulating landscape area directly to the north of the site reads as part of an east-west 
green gap between the settlements of Stanton Hill and Sutton, when viewed from the 
B6028, the site itself does not contribute to this sense of openness… Development of the 
site would have little effect on the separation of these settlements as the openness of the 
site is not perceivable within the landscape.’  
 
Whilst the development of a greenfield site for housing generally would result in some 
harm to the appearance of the area and be in conflict with Policy EV2 of the ALPR. Having 
regard to the above, it is considered that the residential development of the site would not 
unduly harm the character and quality of the landscape, nor the green corridor between 
Stanton Hill and Sutton. As such there would be no significant conflict with Policy EV4 of 
the ALPR, nor Policy NP4 of the NP.  
 

3. Conservation and Ecology; 

 
The Council is under a duty under section 40 of the Natural Environment and Rural 
Communities Act 2006 “to have regard” to the conservation of biodiversity in England, 
when carrying out their normal functions. The ALPR sets out policy protection for 
ecological sites in Policy EV6, which relates to both Local Nature Reserves and Local 
Wildlife Sites. Trees and woodlands are protected in accordance with Policy EV8.   
 
The NPPF para 170 stresses that planning policies and decisions should contribute to and 
enhance the natural and local environment by a variety of measures including minimising 
impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity. An Ecological Assessment and 
Biodiversity Metric have been submitted as part of the application. 
 
A Preliminary Ecological Appraisal Report (PEAR) has been undertaken by qualified 
ecologists RammSanderson Ecology Ltd. This identifies that the site is not one of 
particular ecological importance, comprising an area of intensively grazed improved and 
semi-improved grassland of ‘little botanical interest’ or ‘low floristic value’.  
Nottinghamshire Wildlife Trust (NWT) have been consulted and confirmed that the ecology 
survey and report has been undertaken according to good practice and guidelines. They 
are therefore satisfied with the results conclusions.  
 
NWT have drawn attention towards a possible non-native species; however, the applicant 
has updated the report confirming the plant is native and a control strategy is not required. 
NWT have also drawn attention to a number of matters relating to the ecology buffer, 

Page 39



landscaping planting, precautionary methods for hedgehogs, protecting the Stanton Hill 
LWS, lighting and the provision of Landscape Ecological Management Plan. These can all 
be controlled through a planning condition. NWT have stated the landscape buffer should 
be a minimum of 10m and this controlled through condition; however, in order to allow for 
flexibility at detailed design stage this is proposed to be included in recommended 
condition 8 as a 5-10m buffer, which is shown on the illustrative layout plan and referred to 
in the ecological report.  
 
Protected Sites 
 
The ecology report submitted with the application identifies that: 
 

• The nearest statutorily designated site is Brierley Forest Park LNR immediately 
adjacent to the western boundary of the site. To minimise any potential impacts of the 
development, a buffer has been recommended along the border of the site and LNR. 
 

• The nearest non-statutorily designated sites were Stanton Hill Relict Grassland LWS 
and Stanton Hill Colliery Spoil LWS. It is recommended that mitigation be put in place 
to limit potential impacts to the neighbouring designated sites from an increase in 
pedestrian traffic pressures from the new residents. This is in the form of new 
signposts along with a barrier. 

 

• In relation to the Sherwood Forest possible potential Special Protection Area 
(ppSPA), there is a lack of suitable habitat for nightjar and woodlark. As such, it is 
considered unlikely that the proposed development will result in a negative impact on 
the ppSPA. 

 

Protected Species  
 
The submitted ecological report notes that the majority of the site is suboptimal for great 
crested newts and that there is an extremely low risk of transient great crested newts 
being present within the site. Similarly, no suitable habitats for water vole, otter, or white 
clawed crayfish were identified on, or immediately adjacent the site. In addition, the grazed 
pasture / use of this site will limit reptile habitation and the site is unlikely to be core to any 
local populations, especially when considering neighbouring habitats. A precautionary 
method statement is however recommended due to potential suitable habitats on the site. 
 

The buildings on site were assessed as having negligible potential for supporting roosting 
bats, as such no further surveys prior to demolition are required. There are two trees with 
roosting potential, the report recommends retaining these. It also recommends a sensitive 
lighting strategy and that the buffer will provide foraging opportunities.  
 
The trees and hedgerows on site offered suitable habitat for nesting birds, any vegetation 
clearance / tree pruning works should be completed outside of the bird nesting season 
(March to September inclusive). In terms of badgers, no setts were observed during the 
survey, however badger signs in the form of mammal runs, hairs and swathes of flattened 

Page 40



grass were identified, which indicate that the site is regularly used by badgers. A 
precautionary method statement is recommended.   
 
In terms of principal species, the site does contain habitat for hedgehogs. The ecological 
report therefore recommends a gap in the base of garden fences to allow movement of 
hedgehogs to the woodland. Precautionary working practices to minimise risk of harm to 
hedgehogs are also recommended.  
 
Enhancements  
 
The proposal would provide a new species rich wildflower meadow to the north of the site, 
along with a buffer planting strip adjacent to Brierley Forest Park. To improve habitat for 
reptiles any wooded vegetation removed is proposed to be retained and used to create log 
piles for hibernation within the buffer strip. Additionally, there would also be the provision 
of bird, bat and hedgehog boxes along with new tree and hedgerow planting.  
 
The Nottinghamshire Biodiversity Opportunity Mapping Project 2016 identifies that there 
are aspects of the site which provide opportunities for connectivity with grass and 
woodland. The illustrative plans of the layout submitted with the application, facilitate this 
connectivity with the new meadow planting and additional trees. 
 
Biodiversity net-gain  
 
Paragraph 174 of the NPPF (Feb, 2019) confirms the aspiration that development should 
‘…identify and pursue opportunities for securing measurable net gains’. The Draft 

Environment Bill, although currently not mandated, is likely to set a mandator net gain 
requirement of 10%.The applicant has submitted a Biodiversity Impact Assessment using 
the DEFRA metric, this indicates that scheme would result in an increase in hedgerow 
units of 65.72%; although there would be a loss of 5.89% loss of habitat units (0.62).  
 
In order to mitigate against this loss of habitat units, a contribution would therefore be 
required. Although, the Environment Bill does not place a monetary value on units, the 
Biodiversity net gain and local nature recovery strategies Impact Assessment by DEFRA 
assumed a cost of £11,000 per unit. As such a contribution of £11,594 towards other 
enhancement schemes in the vicinity is considered necessary. This calculation is on the 
basis of 10.54 units total on site + 10% net again at £11,000 per unit.  
 
Summary 
 
The NPPF, at paragraph 175, states that if significant harm to biodiversity resulting from 
development cannot be avoided (through locating on an alternative site with less harmful 
impacts), adequately mitigated, or, as a last resort, compensated for, then planning 
permission should be refused. 
 
The applicant has supplied an Ecological Assessment of the impact of the proposed 
development on designated sites, habitats and relevant fauna. It includes mitigation and 

Page 41



enhancement measures. The report has also been assessed by Nottinghamshire Wildlife 
Trust.  On the basis of the evidence supplied, it is considered the ecological impacts are 
fairly limited and can be adequately mitigated.  
 
It is acknowledged that the proposal would result in a small net loss of habitat units on site. 
However, a contribution will be secured towards off-site improvements. Overall, it is 
considered that the proposals would not merit a refusal in accordance with paragraph 175 
of the NPPF.  
 

4. Flooding and Drainage; 

 

A Flood Risk Assessment and Indicative Drainage Strategy prepared by NeoFlood Ltd has 
been submitted in support of the application. This identifies the site is located in Flood 
Zone 1, representing a very low risk of fluvial flooding and that the site has been shown to 
be able to manage all identified residual flood risk pertinent to the site. The Local Lead 
Flood Authority have assessed the details and raised no objections, subject to a condition 
requiring details of a surface water drainage scheme based on Sustainable Urban 
Drainage Principles (SUDs).  
 
Local concern has been raised in relation to site levels and surface water; however, it is 
considered that a suitable drainage strategy - as advised by the Local Lead Flood 
Authority - can be developed for the site. This would ensure the increase in surface water 
run-off is appropriately managed and would not give rise to flooding issues.  
 
The submitted drainage strategy identifies that foul drainage will be collected and 
discharged to the existing adopted foul system either in Fisher Close to the east or Stanton 
Crescent to the south, subject to approval by Severn Trent Water. Concern has been 
raised, through local representation about the sewers capacity. Within the submitted 
drainage strategy at Appendix C is a developer inquiry response from Severn Trent. The 
response assumes a gravity feed into the foul sewer and does not raise issues of capacity. 
A condition is therefore considered appropriate for full details of foul water to be provided.  
 

5. Housing Density and Mix  

 
Saved policy HG3 sets out a minimum net density requirement of 30 dwellings per hectare 
for a site in this location.At a site area of 3.6ha and with a condition limiting the number of 
dwellings to 84, the gross density of the development would be 23 dwellings per hectare. 
Allowing for a 75% net developable area, this gives a density of 31 dwellings per hectare, 
which is an acceptable in accordance with Policy HG3. It should also be noted that a 
slightly lower density maybe acceptable on the site, due to the requirements to provide the 
landscape buffer and wildflower meadow to the north.  
 
Policy NP 3 of the Neighbourhood Plan -  Housing Type provides that ‘Development 
proposals for housing schemes are required to deliver a housing mix that reflects the local 
identified need. This should include smaller market dwellings to suit older people (for 
example bungalows) and for homes for first time buyers. 

Page 42



` 
The Greater Nottingham & Ashfield Housing Need Assessment, September 2020, Iceni, 
sets out recommendations on market housing mix which seeks to respond to the modelled 
outputs, recent delivery trends and the needs for family households; as well as the role 
which each area plays in the wider housing market area.  All of these factors have been 
brought together by Iceni to arrive at a recommended housing mix by size and type. 
 
Recommended Housing Mix by Size by Type 

Authority  Housing Type 1 Bed 2 Beds 3 Beds 4+ Beds 

Ashfield 

Market 4% 27% 45% 24% 

Affordable Home Ownership 23% 38% 24% 15% 

Affordable Rented 35% 37% 25% 3% 

 

A condition is proposed to ensure an appropriate mix is provided in accordance with this 
latest housing needs assessment.   
 

6. Residential Amenity 

 
This is an outline application, with all matters reserved, except access. However, the 
applicant has submitted an indicative master plan, which shows that sufficient separation 
distances could be provided, so that the development would not adversely impact upon 
existing residential dwellings privacy and light.  
 
Details of the design, layout and appearance will form part of a future reserved matters 
application. These will be carefully assessed, in accordance with Councils ALPR policies, 
supplementary planning guidance, as well as the NPPF and other relevant national 
guidance. This includes taking into account site levels, which is something that has been 
raised by local residents.  
 
A robust assessment, at detailed design stage, will ensure that future development does 
not result in any undue harm to the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers; as well as 
ensuring the development provides a good standard of living for future occupiers.  
 
Some residents have voiced concern surrounding disruption during the construction phase 
of the development. To overcome this, a Construction Environment Management Plan 
(CEMP) condition is proposed this will govern matters such as working hours, vehicle 
parking, wheel washing, emission of noise/dust/dirt etc.  Unfortunately, there is likely to be 
some increased disturbances to residents during construction; however, this would be for 
a temporary period and the CEMP would seek to minimise these matters.  
 
There has been concern over potential for anti-social behaviour the affect on residents 
perceptions of safety. However, this is simply an Outline Application where detailed 
matters will be subject to close assessment in connection with Nottinghamshire’s Police 
Architectural Liaison Officers, whom have advised they will be providing further comments 
at detailed design stage on number of matters. There is nothing inherent about the 
provision of housing, at this location, that would increase anti-social behaviour.  
 

Page 43



7. Highways Safety 
 
The Ashfield Local Plan Review (2002) Policy ST1, set out that, amongst other matters, 
development will be permitted where it (c) does not adversely affect highway safety, or the 
capacity of the transport system. In a similar vein, the NPPF (paragraph 109) states that 
development should only be prevented or refused on highways ground if there would be 
an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or where the residual cumulative impacts on 
the road network would be severe.  
 
Access 
 
The means of access would be taken from the end of Fisher Close, this will include the 
footway and carriageway as a continuation of the existing street. The submitted illustrative 
layout, provided by the applicant, is considered to be acceptable by the Highways 
Authority.  
 
As part of the development, the proposal also includes an upgrade to the junction where 
Fishers Close meets Stoneyford Road. This includes the provision of a ghost island right 
turn on Stoneyford Road - to ensure that traffic turning right into Fishers Close would not 
impede the flow of traffic on Stoneyford Road. A pedestrian refuse crossing point is also 
proposed and the applicant has submitted a  plan showing how the access can be 
provided, in conjunction with access to the potential development site opposite 
(V/2016/0169). Finally, the applicant has provided a plan demonstrating visibility splays of 
2.4m x 123m to the north of the access and 2.4m x 84m to the south east of the access. 
The submitted details have been assessed by the Highways Authority and are considered 
to be acceptable.  
 
Residents have questioned whether another access point could be provided. In this regard 
the design brief for the now withdrawn plan allocation did advise that another point of 
access should be provided. However, with the upgrades provided to the junction of 
Stoneyford Road/Fisher Close, this would operate safely and no such objection has been 
received from the Highways Authority. On this basis, a refusal on these grounds would be 
highly difficult to evidence.  
 
Traffic Impact on the local highway network 
 
The applicant has submitted a Transport Assessment in support of the application. It 
includes committed development from the Gilcroft/Vere Avenue (V/2016/0169) site 
opposite and relevant accident data for the area.  Modelling has been carried out at 
required junctions based on the assessed traffic flows from the development. This data 
shows the junction of Stoneyford Road/Fisher Close would operate with plenty of spare 
capacity in both peak hours.  
 
An assessment has also been carried out at the Stoneyford Road/Priestsic 
Road/Mansfield Road junction. The applicant’s assessments show that the proposed 
development would add 25 and 24 two way traffic movements to the junction, in the 

Page 44



morning and evening peak hours respectively - advising they consider no mitigation to be 
necessary as this is not a severe impact. However, the Highways Authority have advised 
the impact of development flows worsen the performance of the junction and require 
mitigation. This would be in the form of upgrade to the signalling (MOVA), along with 
CCTV to allow bettering monitoring of traffic events and interventions. In addition, as this 
junction operates in tandem with the Mansfield Road/Dalestorth Street/Outram Street 
junction the same upgrades are recommended for that junction. These are to be subject to 
a proposed planning condition.  
 
Accordingly, with the relevant upgrades being provided, and on the basis of the advice 
received from the Highways Authority, it is considered that the development would not 
have a significant impact on the capacity of the Highway Network. As such the proposals 
would be in accordance with Policy ST1 (c) and paragraph 109 of the NPPF.  
 
Parking  
 
Residents have raised issues of existing parking problems on the estate and these being 
worsened by the new development. This application is in Outline form online and the 
parking requirements will be assessed at detailed application stage. These would need to 
be provided in accordance with the Councils Residential Car Parking SPD (2014) and an 
advisory note is proposed on the decision notice making the applicant aware of this. As 
such, it will be assessed to ensure each dwelling is provided with a sufficient level of 
parking.  
 

8. Developer Contributions; 

 
The requirements of the CIL regulations are that a planning obligation can only be a 
reason to grant planning permission provided that it is necessary to make the development 
acceptable in planning terms; directly related to the development; and fairly and 
reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. Set out below are each of the 
contributions required for the proposed development: 
 
Healthcare - £45,517.50 

 

Current capacity at GP surgeries local to the development would not be capable of 
accommodating the associated increase in population, as is made clear from the letter 
NHS Clinical Commissioning Group. 
 
The CCG has provided its standard formula for the cost of extensions as identified by a 
quantity surveyor experienced in health care projects. A revised number of dwellings were 
shown on the site layout (84). Based on this number and the formula, the contribution 
required is £45,517.50 (or £541.80 per dwelling).  
 
This formula has been devised by a suitably qualified expert and is therefore fairly and 
reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. The proposal would generate a 

Page 45



requirement for healthcare provision for residents and is therefore directly related and 
necessary to make the development acceptable. This contribution satisfies the CIL tests.  
 
Primary Education - £370,656 (18 places x £20,592 per place). 

 
NCC have also confirmed that the development would generate an additional 18 primary 
aged school pupils within the Sutton Town Primary Planning Area. Based on current pupil 
forecasts, there is a projected surplus within the planning area. However, NCC have been 
consulted on a number of planning applications, which would result in a shortfall of places.  
 
In order to create additional places in the Sutton Town Primary Planning Area resulting 
from the aggregate impact of this application and other applications, a new primary school 
is required. The County Council have requested a contribution based on the cost per pupil 
of providing a new school, which is £370,656 (18 places x £20,592 per place).  
 
The Councils approach to securing primary school education places in Sutton in Ashfield 
had been accepted at appeal (Reference: APP/W3005/W/20/3252949). The Inspector 
even if some planning applications do not get approved and completed a shortfall in places 
is likely. Indeed, the Councils land supply means that other residential developments are 
likely to come forward. As such, the Inspector was happy with the contribution as indicated 
by NCC whose methodology is consistent with Appendix 5 of the Planning Obligations 
Strategy and DfE guidance. This contribution therefore satisfies the CIL regulation tests.  
 
Public Open Space at Brierley Forest Park - £252,000 (£3,000 per dwelling). 
 
Policy HG6 of the Local Plan sets out that residential development will only be permitted 
where open space is provided to meet certain requirements. This sets out that in sites of 
two hectares and above a minimum of 10% of the gross housing area will be provided as 
open space. It also states that where it is not appropriate to provide open space within a 
site boundary, a planning obligation will be negotiated. 
 
The money will be used for improvements to Brierley Forest Park play areas, car parks, 
entrances, footpaths and other general landscape improvements. This is to include a 
maintenance payment (2.5% of £252k = £6,300 a year; £94,500 over 15 years). So a total 
of £157,500 capital and £94,500 maintenance. The future residents of the site would 
inevitably use Brierley Forest Park for recreation activity and therefore this increased 
pressure should be mitigated via a financial contribution as set out above.  The 
contribution is directly related, reasonable in kind and scale and necessary to make the 
development acceptable. The Councils approach to securing Public Open Space 
contributions has been accepted at a recent appeal (Reference: 
APP/W3005/W/20/3263882). 

 
Bus Stops - £23,000. 
 
A Bus Stop Infrastructure contribution of £23,000 is paid to provide improvements to the 
bus stops on Carsic Road and Stoneyford Road denoted as AS0457 and AS0712 on 

Page 46



Carsic Road Shop and AS0483 and AS0485 on Stoneyford Road. This will include raised 
boarding kerbs ,real time bus stop pole & displays including associated electrical 
connections, or other necessary bus infrastructure improvements. The improvements 
would be at any of the specified closest bus stops to the site, so are directly related to the 
development, fair and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development and 
necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. 
 
10% - Affordable Housing.  

 

The NPPF paragraph 64 sets out that where major development involving the provision of 
housing is proposed, planning policies and decisions should expect at least 10% of the 
homes to be available for affordable home ownership.  
 
Biodiversity - £11,594 
 
It is recognised that the Environment Bill does not place a monetary value on a 
contribution. However, the Biodiversity net gain and local nature recovery strategies 
Impact Assessment by DEFRA assumed a cost of £11,000 per unit. As such a contribution 
of £11,594 towards other enhancement schemes in the vicinity is considered necessary. 
This calculation is on the basis of 10.54 units total on site + 10% net again at £11,000 per 
unit. This is considered to be reasonable and kind in scale to the development. The 
contribution would be used towards enhancement schemes in the vicinity and is therefore 
directly related.  
 
Monitoring Contribution - £1,500.  

Legislation allows Councils to charge a monitoring contribution for S106. Given the 
complexity and size of the agreement, this amount is considered to be reasonable in kind 
and scale.  
 
Management Company  
 
A clause will be added into the Section 106 to ensure the responsibility of the public open 
space, landscape buffer, drainage features and wildflower meadow does not fall upon the 
Council. This will likely take the form of a management company, as is standard within a 
number of developments across the district.  
 

9. Other Issues  
 
Air, Noise and Light Pollution 
 
The Councils Environmental Health Officer has requested a condition requiring that no 
development should commence until an Air Quality Assessment has been provided. The 
application site is not located within, or close to an, Air Quality Management Area, nor 
have any specific issues been raised by Environmental Health. As such, it is considered 
that an Air Quality Assessment could reasonably be requested through a condition in this 
instance and provide indications for any mitigation, if necessary.  

Page 47



 
The proposed development is located away from main roads adjacent to a country park 
and residential housing. As such future residents are unlikely to be adversely affected 
through noise pollution and a condition requiring the submission of a noise impact 
assessment is considered unnecessary. In terms of existing residents, the condition 
requiring the submission of a Construction Environment Management Plan should contain 
measures to reduce noise disturbances during the construction phase.  
 
Finally, a condition will be applied for details of an external lighting strategy to be provided. 
This will seek to reduce light pollution into the adjacent woodland as well as surrounding 
residential properties.  
 
Land Contamination  
 
Concern has been raised in regard to potential Radon in the ground. It is proposed to 
apply the Councils standard contamination condition. This will ensure that any remediation 
works are carried out satisfactorily and that the site is developed free from contamination.   
 
Consultation  
 
The consultation of the application was fully undertaken with The Town and Country 
Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 and Councils 
Statement of Community Involvement. This includes individual neighbouring residents, a 
site notice and press notice. 
 
Updated information was received during the application pertaining to technical matters, as 
well as a revised illustrative layout. Consultees were consulted as required. However, it 
was considered unnecessary to consult residents again on the basis of the updated 
information. As the application seeks approval for the principle of development and 
remained substantially the same.  
 
Loss of Open Space 
 
Concern has also been raised that the proposal would result in a loss of open space. The 
application site is in private ownership with no existing right of public access and the site 
does not form part of Brierley Forest Park. Residents have also stated that children use 
the cul-de-sac of Fisher Close to play out on the street and this would lost. However, it 
should be noted that the illustrative layout does contain an area for public open space, 
which could be used by existing and future residents. The full details will be provided at 
reserved matters stage.   
 
Other Housing Developments 
 
Reference has been made to other potential housing developments across Sutton in 
Ashfield, with questions raised over whether this housing is required. The district currently 
has a significant shortfall in housing land supply with just a 2.25 year housing supply. The 

Page 48



Housing Delivery Test 2020 also indicates the delivery of housing in Ashfield is 
substantially below the housing requirements over the past three years. As such all the 
evidence indicates that the housing is required for the district.  
 

10. Planning Balance and Overall Conclusions 
 
The relevant legislation requires that the appeal be determined in accordance with the 
statutory development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The NPPF 
states that proposals should be considered in the context of the presumption in favour of 
sustainable development, which is defined by economic, social, and environmental 
dimensions and the interrelated roles they perform.  
 
In this case the provision of new homes carries significant weight in favour of granting 
planning permission. It would boost the supply of housing in accordance with the NPPF, 
contributing up to 84 homes, of which 10% would be affordable. It would bring about 
additional housing choice and competition in the housing market. The social benefits 
through the creation of new housing carries significant weight.  
 
There would also be substantial economic benefits through investment in the locality and 
increased spending in shops and services. It would also result in jobs during the 
construction phase. Thereafter, the Council would also receive increased revenues from 
Council tax receipts. These economic benefits carry moderate weight.  
 
The proposal results in a loss biodiversity units at the site and therefore an off-site 
contribution has been achieved to ensure the development provides a net-gain. The 
contribution offered would equate to a 10% net-gain in biodiversity. This is presently in 
excess of any guidance or policy. There would also be the provision of a wildflower 
meadow, landscape buffer as well as other enhancements such as bird, bat boxes and 
reptile log piles. All these have the potential to enhance ecology and biodiversity at the 
site. These factors carry fairly moderate weight in favour of granting permission.  
 
On the other side of the coin, the harms created by the development are relatively limited. 
There would be the loss of open land and the urbanisation of the existing fields, to which 
residents have attributed great weight. However, it is considered that the site is visually 
well contained and that development would not unduly harm the character and quality of 
the landscape, nor the green corridor between Stanton Hill and Sutton. As such, there 
would be no significant conflict with Policy EV4 of the ALPR, nor Policy NP4 of the NP. In 
this case the harm to the landscape carries no more than limited weight.  
 
It is considered that based on the technical evidence supplied by the applicant - and 
subsequent comments received from consultees - that a refusal on the grounds of 
increased flood risk and impact on biodiversity would be difficult to substantiate. The 
Highways Authority have raised no objections to the development, subject to the 
imposition of conditions. 
 

Page 49



In terms of developer contributions, these will be secured towards primary education, 
healthcare, bus stops, public open space, biodiversity as well as affordable housing. 
These will ensure that the necessary infrastructure is in place to support the housing 
development. These matters therefore carry neutral weight in the planning balance. 
 
The proposal is contrary to the ALPR policies ST1 (a), ST2, ST4 and EV2  to the extent 
they seek to restrict development to within defined settlement boundaries. However, the 
ALPR was only intended to guide development up till 2011 and it is clear that these 
policies are not providing sufficient housing to meet the requirements of the district. These 
policies also lack the balanced approach taken in the NPPF and are therefore considered 
to be out of date. Though, that is not say these should simply be disregarded within the 
planning balance, limited weight should be attached to this conflict for the reasons set out 
above.  
 
In this case, the significant ongoing housing shortfall attracts substantial weight in favour of 
granting permission for the proposal, unless any adverse impacts of doing so would 
significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies 
of the NPPF taken as a whole.  
 
It is considered that none of the reasons put forward for opposing the development 
establishes that the harm would be significant or would demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits. Therefore, notwithstanding the conflict with the development plan, it is considered 
that planning permission should be granted, subject to conditions and a Section 106 legal 
agreement.  
 
 
Recommendation:  - Approve, subject to conditions and a Section 106 Agreement to 

secure the following:  
 

• Primary Education - £370,656 (18 places x £20,592 per place). 
• Public Open Space/Realm - £252,000 (£3,000 per dwelling). 
• Healthcare - £45,517.5 (£541.8 per dwelling).  
• Bus Stops - £23,000. 
• Biodiversity – £11,594. 
• Affordable Housing 10% 

• Monitoring Contribution - £1,500. 
• Management Company set up for public open space, drainage etc.  
• Travel Plan Monitoring. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 50



CONDITIONS 
 

1. Details of the appearance, landscaping, layout, and scale, (hereinafter called "the 
reserved matters") shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority before any development takes place and the development shall 
be carried out as approved. 
 

2. Application for approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the local planning 
authority not later than 3 years from the date of this permission.  
 

3. The development hereby permitted shall take place not later than 2 years from the 
date of approval of the last of the reserved matters to be approved. 
 

4. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
following approved plans: 
 

• Site Location Plan 20-206-100  

• Site access via end of Fisher Close ADC1017-DR-002 Rev. P1 

• Access Junction Layout ADC1017-DR-003 Rev. P1  
 

5. The number of residential dwellings submitted for details in accordance with 
condition 1 shall be limited to no more than 84. 
 

6. The details submitted in accordance with condition 1 shall include that no 
development takes place within the northern part of the site – shown as a planted 
wildflower meadow on Illustrative Layout Plan Dwg No. 20/206-103A. 
 

7. The details submitted in accordance with condition 1 shall show a housing mix in 
accordance with the details set out within the Greater Nottingham & Ashfield 
Housing Need Assessment, September 2020, by Iceni.  
 

8. No site clearance, preparatory work, demolition or development shall take place 
until a detailed Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority based on the 
recommendations for habitat enhancement and creation set out in the Preliminary 
Ecological Appraisal Report by RammSanderson dated May 2021 and the 
Biodiversity Impact Assessment by RammSanderson dated 29th January 2021. The 
LEMP shall included 

 

• details of landscape and ecological management objectives, operations and 
maintenance prescriptions, together with their timings; 

• details of a 5-10m wide ecological buffer along the western boundary of the 
site shared with Brierley Forest Park LNR, as shown on  Illustrative Layout 
Plan Dwg No. 20/206-103A. 

• measures to protect Stanton Hill Relict Grassland LWS 

• details of new habitats created on site; and 

Page 51



• details of maintenance regimes and management responsibilities. 
 

The LEMP shall be carried out as approved, and the site maintained 
thereafter in accordance with it. 
 

9. No site clearance, preparatory work, demolition or development shall take place 
until a scheme for the protection of the retained trees and hedgerows (the tree 
protection plan) and the appropriate working methods (the arboricultural method 
statement) in accordance with paragraphs 5.5 and 6.1 of British Standard BS 5837: 
Trees in relation  , demolition and construction - Recommendations (or in an 
equivalent British Standard if replaced) shall have been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the local planning authority. The scheme for the protection of the 
retained trees and hedgerows shall be carried out as approved and retained 
throughout the construction period. 
 

10. No part of the development hereby approved shall commence until a detailed 
surface water drainage scheme based on the principles set out within the Flood 
Risk Assessment and Indicative Drainage Strategy prepared by NeoFlood Ltd has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in 
consultation with the Lead Local Flood Authority. The scheme shall be implemented 
in accordance with the approved details prior to completion of the development. The 
scheme to be submitted shall:  

 

• Demonstrate that the development will use SuDS throughout the site as a 
primary means of surface water management and that design is in 
accordance with CIRIA C753.  

• Limit the discharge rate generated by all rainfall events up to the 100 year 
plus 40% (for climate change) critical rain storm 5 l/s rates for the 
developable area. 

• Provision of surface water run-off attenuation storage in accordance with 
'Science Report SCO30219 Rainfall Management for Developments' and the 
approved FRA  

• Provide detailed design (plans, network details and calculations) in support of 
any surface water drainage scheme, including details on any attenuation 
system, and the outfall arrangements. Calculations should demonstrate the 
performance of the designed system for a range of return periods and storm 
durations inclusive of the 1 in 1 year, 1 in 2 year, 1 in 30 year, 1 in 100 year 
and 1 in 100 year plus climate change return periods.  

• For all exceedance to be contained within the site boundary without flooding 
new properties in a 100year+40% storm. Evidence of this to be shown on a 
map with exceedance flow paths. 

• Details of STW approval for connections to existing network and any 
adoption of site drainage infrastructure.  

• Evidence of how the on-site surface water drainage systems shall be 
maintained and managed after completion and for the lifetime of the 
development to ensure long term maintenance.  

Page 52



 
11. No building hereby permitted shall be occupied until foul water drainage works shall 

have been implemented in accordance with details that shall first have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. the foul 
drainage strategy shall thereafter be implemented and maintained in accordance 
with the approved details. 
 

12. Prior to the commencement of development, a construction management plan shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, this should 
include: 
 

• How construction traffic will access the site; 

• Proposed hours and days of working; 

• Management of parking by persons involved in the construction of the 
development, including operatives & visitors; 

• Proposed temporary traffic restrictions and arrangement for 
loading/unloading & turning of vehicles; 

• Location of the site storage areas and compounds; 

• The segregation of construction vehicle and pedestrian movements on site 
and the adjacent public highway; 

• Wheel wash facility to prevent the deposit of debris on the public highway, 
(periodic street sweeping & cleansing of the public highway will not be accepted 
as a proactive method to address this issue; 

• A strategy for the minimisation of noise, vibration and dust; 

• Pollution control measures to the adjacent stream; 

• Site contact detail in case of complaints; 

• Waste Audit. 
 

The approved details shall be adhered to throughout the construction period.  
 

13.  Prior to the commencement of any works pursuant to this permission the applicant 
shall submit the following to the Local Planning Authority: 
 

i. A desktop study/Phase I report documenting the previous history of the 
site and its immediate environs. 

ii. A site investigation/Phase II report where any previous use of the site 
indicates a potential contaminative use.  The applicant/developer shall 
submit a Site Investigation/Phase II Report documenting the 
characteristics of the ground at the site. The Site Investigation should 
establish the full extent, depth and cross-section, nature and 
composition of the contamination. Ground gas monitoring and chemical 
analysis, identified as being appropriate by the Desktop Study, should 
be carried out in accordance with current guidance using 
UKAS/MCERTS accredited methods. All technical data must be 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority. 

Page 53



iii. A Scheme of Remedial Works where the Site Investigation has 
identified the presence of significant levels of harmful ground gas and/or 
significant levels of chemical contamination. The scheme should include 
a Remediation Statement and Risk Assessment Strategy to prevent any 
significant risk arising when the site is being developed or subsequently 
occupied. 
Any variation to the Remediation Scheme shall be agreed in writing with 
the Local Planning Authority, in advance of works being undertaken. 
All remediation should be carried out safely, ensuring that no significant 
risk(s) remain. The applicant will need to have a contingency plan 
should the primary remediation or subsequent construction phase 
reveal any additional contamination.  Where additional contamination is 
found the applicant must submit in writing, details of the contingency 
plan for the written approval by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
On completion of remedial works and prior to the occupation/use of the 
development, the applicant must submit to the Local Planning Authority: 

 
iv. A Validation Report with confirmation that all remedial works have been 

completed and validated, in accordance with the agreed details. The 
Validation Report must be submitted for the written approval of the 
Local Planning Authority prior to the development being put to its 
intended use. 

 
14. No development shall take place within the site until the applicant has secured the 

implementation of a programme of archaeological work for the development in 
accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority.  
 

15. No dwelling shall be occupied until an external lighting strategy has been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The strategy shall 
ensure adequate illumination of roads and paths and avoid any unnecessary light 
pollution. The strategy shall incorporate an assessment of light pollution impacts on 
the northern and western boundaries. The strategy shall be implemented and 
thereafter managed and maintained in accordance with the approved details.  
 

16. No development shall take place until an Air Quality Assessment (AQ) has been 
submitted to and had approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Any 
mitigation measures contained within the AQA shall be carried out as approved and 
within an agreed timeframe.  
 

17. No works above damp proof course shall take place until the applicant has 
submitted a sustainability statement. This shall include details of measures such as 
solar panels, rainwater collection, waste reduction, ground/air source heat pumps, 
construction materials and energy efficiency. It shall also set out how electric 

Page 54



vehicle charging point will be installed pursuant to the details submitted under 
condition 1. All approved details shall thereafter be implemented within the scheme.  
 

18. No part of the development hereby permitted shall commence on any part of the 
application site unless or until a suitable access into the site has been provided at 
Fisher Close as shown for indicative purposes on the Illustrative Layout Plan, drg. 
20/206-103A, to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.  

 
19. No part of the development hereby permitted shall take place until the improved 

access onto Fisher Close from Stoneyford Road incorporating pedestrian refuges 
and dedicated right turn lane has been provided as shown for indicative purposes 
on drawing no. ADC1017-DR-003 Rev. P1 dated 16/06/21.  

 
20. No part of the development hereby permitted shall take place until details of the 

new access road from Fisher Close (the extension of Fisher Close) have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority including street 
lighting, drainage, parking and turning facilities and surfacing. All details submitted 
to the LPA for approval shall comply with the Notts County Council current Highway 
Design Guide and shall be implemented as approved at Section 38 Agreement 
stage in accordance with the Highways Act 1980.  

 
21. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until improvements, 

by way of the installation of MOVA and CCTV have been carried out at both the 
Mansfield Road/Priestsic Road/Stoneyford Road and Mansfield Road/Dalestorth 
Street/Outram Street junctions to mitigate the impact of the development trips.  

 

REASONS 
 

1. To comply with the requirements of Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 as amended. 
 

2. To comply with the requirements of Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 as amended. 

 
3. To comply with the requirements of Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning 

Act 1990 as amended. 
 

4. To ensure that the development takes the form envisaged by the Local Planning 
Authority when determining the application. 

 
5. The application has been assessed on the basis of no more than the relevant 

number of dwellings being provided.  
 

6. In the interests of enhancing ecology and to protect the green corridor between 
Stanton Hill and Sutton in Ashfield. 

 
7. To ensure an appropriate mix of housing is provided at the site. 

Page 55



 
8. In the interests of biodiversity.  

 
9. To ensure retained trees and hedgerows are adequately protected.  

 
10. To ensure adequate surface water drainage systems are provided. 

 
11. To ensure adequate foul water drainage systems are provided. 

 
12.  In the interests of highways safety and residential amenity.  

 
13. To ensure the site is developed free from contamination.  

 
14. To ensure any archaeological features are properly recorded.  

 
15. To avoid any unnecessary light pollution.  

 
16. To avoid any unnecessary air pollution. 

 
17. In the interests of climate change.  

 
18. In the interests of highways safety.  

 
19. In the interests of highways safety. 

 
20. To ensure the development is constructed to adoptable standards. 

 
21. In the interests of junction capacity and minimsing delays.   

 
INFORMATIVE 

 
1. This permission shall be read in connection with a Section 106 Agreement.  

 
2. The applicant is advised that all reserved matters details should have due regard to 

the following: 
 

Councils Supplementary Planning Documents 
 

• Residential Design Guide SPD 2014. 

• Residential Car Parking Standards 2014 
 

National Guidance 
 

• The National Design Guide (2020),  

• National Model Design Code (2021)  

• Building for a Healthy Life (2020),  

Page 56



• LTN120 (2020),  

• Gear Change (2020) and  

• Manual for Streets 2 (2010), 
 

3. The applicant/developer is strongly advised to ensure compliance with all planning 
conditions, if any, attached to the decision. Failure to do so could result in LEGAL 
action being taken by the Ashfield District Council at an appropriate time, to ensure 
full compliance.  If you require any guidance or clarification with regard to the terms 
of any planning conditions then do not hesitate to contact the Development & 
Building Control Section of the Authority on Mansfield (01623 450000). 

 
4. The proposed development lies within a coal mining area which may contain 

unrecorded coal mining related hazards.  If any coal mining feature is encountered 
during development, this should be reported immediately to The Coal Authority on 
0845 762 6848. Property specific summary information on past, current and future 
coal mining activity can be obtained from The Coal Authority's Property Search 
Service on 0845 762 6848 or at www.groundstability.com. 

 

5. In order to avoid impacts to nesting birds we also request that all 
tree/shrub/hedgerow/scrub and rough grassland removal work be undertaken 
outside of the bird-breeding season (March-September inclusive).  If works are to 
be carried out during this time then a suitably qualified ecologist should be on site to 
survey for nesting birds prior to any vegetation clearance.  As you will be aware all 
nesting birds', birds' nests, young and eggs (except pest species) are protected by 
the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (and as amended).  Nesting is taken to be 
from the point at which birds start to build a nest, to the point at which the last chick 
of the last brood of the season has fully fledged and left the nesting area. 
 

6. The applicant should note that, notwithstanding any planning permission, if any 
highway forming part of the development is to be adopted by the Highways 
Authority, the new roads and/or widened footway in this case, including any 
highway drainage, will be required to comply with the Nottinghamshire County 
Council’s current highway design guidance and specification for roadworks.  

 
7. The Advanced Payments Code in the Highways Act 1980 applies and under section 

219 of the Act payment will be required from the owner of the land fronting a private 
street on which a new building is to be erected. The developer should contact the 
Highway Authority with regard to compliance with the Code, and/or to the issue of a 
Section 38 Agreement and bond under the Highways Act 1980. A Section 38 
Agreement can take some time to complete. Therefore, it is recommended that the 
developer contact the Highway Authority as early as possible.  

 
8. It is strongly recommended that the developer contact the Highway Authority at an 

early stage to clarify the codes etc. with which compliance will be required in the 
particular circumstance, and it is essential that design calculations and detailed 
construction drawings for the proposed works are submitted to and approved by the 

Page 57

http://www.groundstability.com/


County Council in writing before any work commences on site. Please contact 
hdc.north@nottscc.gov.uk for further details.  

 
9. In order to carry out the off site works required you will be undertaking work in the 

public highway which is land subject to the provisions of the Highways Act 1980 (as 
amended) and therefore land over which you have no control. In order to undertake 
the works you will need to enter in an agreement under Section 278 of the Act. 
Please contact hdc.north@nottscc.gov.uk for further details.  

 
10. Bus stop improvements near to the proposed access are required with a 

contribution of £23,000 required for this purpose. Please contact 
ptdc@nottscc.gov.uk tel: 0115 977 4520 for further details. 

 
 

 
 

Page 58



Ashfield District Council © Crown copyright and database right 2021. Ordnance Survey 100024849

MAP SCALE 1:
CREATED DATE:

1250
17/09/2021

V/2021/0388

Page 59



COMMITTEE DATE 06/10/2021 WARD Kingsway 
  
APP REF V/2021/0388 
  
APPLICANT Mrs Laura Pall-Coates 
  
PROPOSAL Change of Use from Residential to Residential and 

Childminding 
  
LOCATION 54 Oxford Street, Kirkby in Ashfield, NG17 7ED. 
  
WEB-LINK https://www.google.com/maps/place/54+Oxford+St,+Kirkby+in

+Ashfield,+Nottingham+NG17+7ED/@53.0954956,-

1.2407102,101m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m5!3m4!1s0x487995bb066df6

17:0x14929b9825df1bb0!8m2!3d53.095579!4d-1.2405168 

  
BACKGROUND PAPERS A, B, C and D. 
 
App Registered: 20/07/2021  Expiry Date: 13/09/2021 
       
Consideration has been given to the Equalities Act 2010 in processing this 
application. 
 
This application has been referred to Planning Committee by Councillor 
Zadrozny to discuss the impact on neighbouring residents. 
 
The Application: 

This is an application for the change of use from residential to residential and 

childminding. The childminding business is already operational, and it is proposed to 

accommodate up to 10 children (these 10 children will be those who do not normally 

reside at the property) on site at any one time, operating between the hours of 

7:30am to 5:30pm.  

The application site is within a residential area, and bound by residential properties 

on all sides. 

 

Consultations: 

Individual notifications have been sent to surrounding residents.  

The following responses have been received: 

Resident comments: 

No written representations have been submitted directly to the Council from local 

residents, however the applicant has submitted a number of letters/emails which 

Page 60

https://www.google.com/maps/place/54+Oxford+St,+Kirkby+in+Ashfield,+Nottingham+NG17+7ED/@53.0954956,-1.2407102,101m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m5!3m4!1s0x487995bb066df617:0x14929b9825df1bb0!8m2!3d53.095579!4d-1.2405168
https://www.google.com/maps/place/54+Oxford+St,+Kirkby+in+Ashfield,+Nottingham+NG17+7ED/@53.0954956,-1.2407102,101m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m5!3m4!1s0x487995bb066df617:0x14929b9825df1bb0!8m2!3d53.095579!4d-1.2405168
https://www.google.com/maps/place/54+Oxford+St,+Kirkby+in+Ashfield,+Nottingham+NG17+7ED/@53.0954956,-1.2407102,101m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m5!3m4!1s0x487995bb066df617:0x14929b9825df1bb0!8m2!3d53.095579!4d-1.2405168
https://www.google.com/maps/place/54+Oxford+St,+Kirkby+in+Ashfield,+Nottingham+NG17+7ED/@53.0954956,-1.2407102,101m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m5!3m4!1s0x487995bb066df617:0x14929b9825df1bb0!8m2!3d53.095579!4d-1.2405168


have been received from local residents which show their support for the proposal. 

This will be discussed further below in the section on amenity. 

 

Nottinghamshire County Council Highways: 

No objection. The proposal is considered not to have any detrimental impact on the 

highway. 

No proposed changes to the dwelling or the access, and acknowledge the property 

has no off-street parking facilities. There are no restrictions to on-street parking. 

 

Policy: 

Having regard to Section 38 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 the 

main policy considerations are as follows: 

 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF): 

Part 6: Building a strong, competitive economy. 

Part 8: Promoting healthy and safe communities. 

Part 12: Achieving well-designed places. 

 

Ashfield Local Plan Review (ALPR) (2002): 

ST1 – Development. 

ST2 – Main urban area. 

 

Relevant Planning History: 

V/2021/0205 - Change of Use from Residential to Residential and Childminding - 

Withdrawn. 

 

Comment: 

Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that, in dealing 

with proposals for planning permission, regard must be had to the provisions of the 

development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any other material 

considerations. Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 

provides that, if regard is to be had to the development plan for any determination, 

Page 61



then that determination must be made in accordance with the plan, unless material 

considerations indicate otherwise. Therefore, the starting point for decision-making 

are the policies set out in the Ashfield Local Plan Review 2002 (ALPR) 

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) is a material consideration. The 

policies in the development plan must be considered in relation to their degree of 

consistency with the provisions of the NPPF (NPPF paragraph 219). This will depend 

on the specific terms of the policies and of the corresponding parts of the NPPF 

when both are read in their full context.  An overall judgement must be formed as to 

whether development plan policies, taken as a whole, are to be regarded as out of 

date for the purpose of the decision. 

 

Amenity: 

This is a retrospective application for a childminding business to be run from a 

residential property, for up to 10 children between the hours of 7:30am to 5:30pm. 

No external alterations are proposed as part of the application. There are therefore 

no visual amenity concerns.    

The primary consideration is the impact upon the residential amenity of neighbouring 

properties. 

At ground floor level is a lounge, playroom and kitchen-diner (from the front to the 

back of the property respectfully).  

Access to the property is to the side, down a hard surfaced path. This is also the 

same ‘shared’ access space for the neighbouring property of No.56,  it is understood 

that each property owns their respective half of the pathway. Although there is no 

boundary treatment between the two, there is a visible differentiation in ground 

levels/surfacing to reinforce this aspect. Across from No.54’s access door, the 

neighbour at No.56 has an openable window in its ground floor side elevation. This is 

understood to serve a lounge area. 

The applicant has stated that sound boards are installed on all shared walls to 

reduce sound levels, however the Council does not have any information/evidence of 

this acoustic detail. It is understood that the playroom, which is sited centrally within 

the dwelling, is where the children spend most of their time. A large wall unit covers 

the shared wall. 

The applicant has also implemented additional measurers in an attempt to reduce 

noise by restricting children from playing in the garden area before 10am. An 

outbuilding is present at the end of the garden, however this is ancillary to the main 

dwellinghouse and is understood not to be used in association with the childminding 

business.  

Page 62



Once the applicant was aware of the complaint received by the Council, they 

distributed letters to fifteen surrounding houses to apologies for any disruption and to 

welcome any comments on their operations. This generated 6 written letters, emails 

and messages of support which were sent directly to the applicant, copies of which 

have been provided to the Council. All written correspondence generated by the 

applicants letter, which show support for and/or no issues with the proposal, were 

from residents on Oxford Street. 

Whilst the Council acknowledges these letters and offers them due weight 

accordingly, it should also be noted that the absence of objections against a planning 

application does not mean that there will not be a negative or harmful impacts upon 

nearby residents. 

Permission is being sought to continue to operate the childminding business for up to 

10 children (these 10 children will be those who do not normally reside at the 

property). It is acknowledged that other relevant legislation and Ofsted certificates 

may ‘allow’ more children to be on site relative to the number of registered 

childminders present, however the Council must assess the proposal before it on its 

merits. 

Within the submitted planning statement it is highlighted that no issues were 

experienced until the pandemic, when children were playing outside more and 

windows were open. The pandemic was, and still is, a time when nearby residents 

would have been at home more for leisure and work (who would likely be utilising 

both internal and external spaces). Nearby residents are considered to be noise 

sensitive receptors. Due to the nature, scale and level of activity associated with the 

business, this generated a complaint from a nearby resident relating to noise and 

parking. On this basis, it is not unreasonable to assume that the level of activity and 

associated noise is having a harmful effect on the residential amenity of 

neighbouring properties. 

Having reviewed the proposal in accordance with the submitted details, it is 

considered that the cumulative effect of up to 10 children on site associated with the 

childminding business would constitute harm to the amenity of nearby residents, 

primarily through the noise generated from the proposal (from internal and external 

play etc) and any associated activities, including the level of comings and goings 

from the property which will be discussed further below in the ‘highways’ section. 

It should be noted that up to 6 children (these would be children who would not 

normally reside at the property) can be present at a site for childminding purposes 

without requiring planning permission. This is because up to six children would not 

constitute a change of use as all six children could be overseen by one childminder 

under the current Ofsted guidance. The presence of more than six children would 

require an additional staff helper, thus in planning terms the enterprise would 

constitute a business and a change of use would then be required. 

Page 63



Overall within the planning balance it is considered that the scale of the business in 

this location would have a harmful impact upon the residential amenity of nearby 

residents, causing detriment to their living conditions via noise and general 

disturbance generated from the proposed business and any associated activities. 

 

Highways: 

The Highway Authority have provided comments on the application, who consider 

that there is unlikely to be an unacceptable impact on the highway. They also 

confirm that there are no restrictions to on-street parking along Oxford Street. 

Oxford Street is an adopted highway maintainable at public expense. The application 

property does not have any off-street parking provision, like many other properties 

along the street. However some properties to the east of the application site do have 

a driveway to accommodate some level of off-street parking, and therefore the levels 

of on-street parking in this area were witnessed to be lighter than was seen on other 

areas of the street. 

At the time of the Council’s visit to the property during the day, levels of on-street 

parking within the vicinity were somewhat heavy. It is acknowledged this only 

represents a ‘snapshot’, but the Council also appreciates that a number of vehicles 

would typically be absent as a result of people travelling to work via private car. It is 

therefore considered that the level of parking witnessed on site would typically be 

heavier in the mornings and evenings. 

The submitted planning statement highlights that pick-up and drop-off times for the 

children varies, and is arranged on a day to day basis following liaison with parents. 

It is also stated that attempts are made where possible to stagger pick-up and drop-

off times. 

The Council understands the frustration some residents may feel if they are unable 

to park outside their own property etc, but as Oxford Street it is an adopted public 

highway which has no parking restrictions in place, the Local Planning Authority 

cannot insist where residents/visitors park. Nevertheless, the impact upon the 

capacity and safety of the highway network still requires consideration. 

Due to the ad-hoc approach to pick-ups and drop-offs it would not be unreasonable 

to assume that there would be instances where multiple parents arrive to the 

property together/within a short space of time. Even if a parent does not physically 

go to the property to collect their child until a pre-arranged set time, it would not be 

unreasonable for them to arrive early and wait in their parked vehicle until their pre-

arranged pick-up time. These circumstances only exacerbate concerns around 

parking and the impact upon the highway network. 

Due to the number of children proposed, the comings and goings associated with the 

pick-up and drop-off of the children is considered to amount to harm to the 

Page 64



residential amenity of neighbours via the general disturbance associated with the 

business, such as from the running and manoeuvring of motor vehicles, with activity 

levels of this nature being over and above what may reasonably be expected from a 

residential dwelling. Additionally the level of traffic the business will generate 

comparative to likely available levels of on-street parking is considered to be of 

detriment to the capacity of the highway network. 

It is also recognised that Oxford Street can also be utilised as a ‘cut-through’ 

between Diamond Avenue and Kingsway, adding further pressure to the highway 

network. 

In accordance with the above, it is considered that the proposal will have a negative 

impact on the highway network and also cause harm to the amenity of nearby 

residents via the frequent ad-hoc comings and goings to the property associated with 

the pick-up and drop-off of children at the scale proposed. 

 

Conclusion: 

It is considered that the proposal would have a detrimental impact upon the amenity 

of nearby residents through noise and disturbance generated from the business use 

due to its nature, scale and associated levels of activity. 

Furthermore the vehicular movements associated with the pick-up and drop-off of 

children is considered to cause harm to the living conditions of residents living within 

the vicinity of the site due to the scale of the comings and goings, which is also 

considered to negatively affect the capacity of the highway network. 

It is therefore recommended this application be refused planning permission for the 

following reasons: 

 

Recommendation: Refuse planning permission. 

 

Reasons: 

1. It is considered that the proposed development would have a detrimental 

impact upon the residential amenity of nearby residents due to harmful levels 

of noise and general disturbance being generated as a direct result of the 

nature, scale and level of activity associated with the business. The proposal 

is therefore considered to be contrary to Policy ST1 (b, and e) of the Ashfield 

Local Plan Review (2002) which seek to ensure a proposal does not 

adversely affect the character, quality or amenity of an area, and that a 

proposal would not conflict with an existing adjoining or nearby use. The 

proposal is also considered to conflict with Part 12 (achieving well-designed 

places) of the National Planning Policy Framework (2021) which seeks to 

Page 65



improve the overall quality of an area by creating environments which secure 

a high level of amenity for existing and future users. 

2. The residual cumulative impact of the reliance on on-street parking in addition 

to the ad-hoc comings and goings associated with the pick-up and drop-off of 

children is considered to be of detriment to the capacity of the highway 

network. By virtue of these comings and goings, this level of vehicular activity 

would be over and above what may reasonably be expected from a residential 

dwelling, thus having a detrimental impact upon the amenity of nearby 

residents. The proposal is therefore considered contrary to policy ST1 (b, c 

and e) of the Ashfield Local Plan Review (2002), and Paragraph 111 of the 

National Planning Policy Framework (2021). 

 

 

 

Page 66



Ashfield District Council © Crown copyright and database right 2021. Ordnance Survey 100024849

MAP SCALE 1:
CREATED DATE:

1250
17/09/2021

V/2021/0421

Page 67



COMMITTEE DATE 06/10/2021 WARD Stanton Hill and Teversal 
  
APP REF V/2021/0421 
  
APPLICANT I Taylor & H Hemstock 
  
PROPOSAL Change of Use of Agricultural Land to Camping Lodges and 

Parking Together with the Creation of a New Access 
  
LOCATION Fackley Farm, Fackley Road, Teversal, Sutton in Ashfield, 

NG17 3HL 
  
WEB-LINK https://www.google.com/maps/@53.1459924,-

1.2900446,248m/data=!3m1!1e3 

 

  
BACKGROUND PAPERS A, B, D, & K. 
 
App Registered: 07/06/2021  Expiry Date: 01/08/2021 
       
Consideration has been given to the Equalities Act 2010 in processing this 
application. 
 
This application has been referred to Planning Committee by Councillor Smith 
to discuss the impact upon the street scene. 
 
The Application: 

This is an application for the change of use of agricultural land, installation of 

camping lodges and creation of a new vehicle access. The application site is 

currently overgrown, and comprises of a storage area for agricultural machinery and 

associated paraphernalia.  

Directly along the northern boundary of the site runs the Silverhill Trail, which is 

situated atop a raised embankment. To the north and northeast are residential 

properties, with open fields to the south west. 

The application site is located outside of the Districts main urban areas or named 

settlements, in an area designated as Countryside, as identified by policy EV2 of the 

ALPR 2002. 

 

Consultations: 

A site notice has been posted together with individual notifications to surrounding 

residents.  

Page 68

https://www.google.com/maps/@53.1459924,-1.2900446,248m/data=!3m1!1e3
https://www.google.com/maps/@53.1459924,-1.2900446,248m/data=!3m1!1e3


The following responses have been received: 

Resident comments: 

No comments received from any local residents. 

 

Ashfield District Council Planning Policy: 

Policy EV2 seeks to locate appropriate development in the most sustainable 

locations and to ensure that development does not adversely affect the countryside, 

emphasising that development must be located and designed so as not to adversely 

affect the character of the countryside, in particular its openness.  

Outdoor sport, outdoor recreation and tourism uses are identified as appropriate 

uses within the Countryside (EV2 b). Whilst the Neighbourhood Plan identifies a 

‘tourism trail’ as being an opportunity within the SWOT analysis, no other specific 

reference to tourism is made within the Neighbourhood Plan. 

Tourism is identified in relation to living accommodation in several of the other forms 

of appropriate development set out in Policy EV2 of the ALPR, such as (e) reuse of 

existing buildings and (g) infill development. 

The ALPR in Chapter 8 sets out that ‘the Council recognises that the provision and 

improvement of opportunities for recreation and tourism is of major importance in 

improving the quality of life for the local community and for attracting tourists and 

other visitors to the District.’ The objectives in relation to Recreation, Tourism and 

Community Service include ‘To consider the potential for tourist-related development 

and particularly the recreational benefits associated with the Greenwood Community 

Forest.’ Tourism is specifically considered in ALPR paragraphs 8.50. 8.51 and 8.53.   

This includes a recognition that pressure for tourism accommodation on land outside 

the Main Urban Areas and Named Settlements need to be considered against the 

provisions of Policies EV2. It is also identified in the Ashfield Corporate Plan 2019 to 

2023 that, an independent Ashfield Place Board, Discover Ashfield, has been 

established. Their themes include support tourism and the visitor economy in the 

Ashfield area. 

NPPF Paragraph 85 sets out that decisions should recognise sites to meet local 

business and community needs in rural areas. Development should be sensitive to 

its surroundings, and the use of previously developed land and those sites which are 

physically well-related to existing settlements should be encouraged. 

The application site is not subject to any national or local environmental 

designations. A Priority Habitat Inventory - Deciduous Woodland (England)  is 

identified to the former railway.     

Fackley Farm, adjacent to the site, is a locally listed building (Site Reference 755), 

and the impact would need to be considered. 

Page 69



 

Teversal, Stanton Hill and Skegby Neighbourhood Forum: 

Application does not mention the Neighbourhood Plan, which is relevant to the 

proposal. 

The application may meet some of the criteria for countryside development, it is 

within the green corridor between Teversal and Stanton Hill, which aim to separate 

settlements and preserve character. 

Understand the re-siting of the access road for safety reasons, but this would mean 

erosion of green space. 

This application could be a precursor to a much larger application, and the design of 

the units is unlikely to fit with any existing housing stock nearby. 

If permission is granted a condition should be attached preventing the long-term 

occupation of the units – maximum of 28 days on any one occasion. 

The access gate should be set back from the main road to avoid unsightly intrusion 

and to allow vehicles to pull off the road. 

The site should be limited to the number of chalets proposed to avoid further 

expansion. 

The existing footpath should be clearly identified as part of the general tidying of the 

site. 

 

Natural England: 

No objection, subject to appropriate mitigation being secured in relation to SuDs 

details and the future management and maintenance of such systems. 

The site is within 2km of the Teversal Pastures SSSI, which is sensitive to water 

quality. 

 

Nottinghamshire County Council Highways: 

Initially objected to the proposal, however following revisions to the proposal and 

further consultation, the Highway Authority no longer objects to the proposal. 

 

Nottinghamshire County Council Rights of Way: 

Footpath 35 runs through the application site.  

Page 70



Question whether the footpath is to be resurfaced, and the proposed width of the 

footpath.  

Informatives advised. 

 

The Coal Authority: 

The application site does fall within the defined Development High Risk Area; 

however, the nature of development is exempt, and therefore there is no requirement 

for a Coal Mining Risk Assessment to be submitted. However the applicant may wish 

to consider the implications posed by the coal mining legacy of the site. 

 

Policy: 

Having regard to Section 38 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 the 

main policy considerations are as follows: 

 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF): 

Part 2 Achieving Sustainable Development. 

Part 6: Building a strong, competitive economy. 

Part 8: Promoting healthy and safe communities. 

Part 9: Promoting sustainable transport. 

Part 12: Achieving well-designed places. 

Part 14: Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change. 

Part 15: Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

Part 16: Conserving and enhancing the historic environment. 

 

Ashfield Local Plan Review (ALPR) (2002): 

ST1: Development. 

ST4: Remainder of the District. 

EV2: Countryside.  

EV8: Trees and Woodlands. 

RC8:  Recreational Routes. 

Page 71



 

Teversal, Stanton Hill & Skegby (TSS) Neighbourhood Plan (2016-2031): 

NP1: Sustainable development. 

NP4: Protecting the Landscape Character. 

NP5: Protect and Enhancing Heritage Assets 

NP6: Improving Access to the Countryside. 

 

Relevant Planning History: 

V/1978/0254 - Site for residential development - Refuse.  

V/2017/0107 - Demolition of existing derelict buildings and erection of one implement 

store and one storage shed - FULCC. 

 

Comment: 

Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that, in dealing 

with proposals for planning permission, regard must be had to the provisions of the 

development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any other material 

considerations. Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 

provides that, if regard is to be had to the development plan for any determination, 

then that determination must be made in accordance with the plan, unless material 

considerations indicate otherwise.   Therefore, the starting point for decision-making 

are the policies set out in the Ashfield Local Plan Review 2002 (ALPR) 

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) is a material consideration.  The 

policies in the development plan must be considered in relation to their degree of 

consistency with the provisions of the NPPF (NPPF paragraph 219).  This will 

depend on the specific terms of the policies and of the corresponding parts of the 

NPPF when both are read in their full context.  An overall judgement must be formed 

as to whether development plan policies, taken as a whole, are to be regarded as 

out of date for the purpose of the decision 

ALPR Policy ST4 sets out that permission will only be given for: 

• Sites allocated for development; 

• Development appropriate to the Green Belt (Policy EV1) or the countryside 

(Policy EV2). 

 

Principle of Development: 

Page 72



Fackley is washed over by the countryside and, therefore, the application site is in 

the countryside as defined by Policy EV2. 

In combination with Policy ST4, Policy EV2 establishes a vision for the countryside 

and seeks to locate development in the most sustainable locations and to ensure 

that development does not adversely affect the countryside. The Policy restricts 

development in the countryside to defined appropriate forms of development.  It also 

emphasises that development must be located and designed so as not to adversely 

affect the character of the countryside, in particular its openness. The NPPF does 

have a more flexible approach to development in the countryside, but also 

recognises the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside (NPPF para 174 b).  

Therefore, it is considered that the objectives of the Policy EV2 are broadly 

consistent with the policies relating to the countryside in the NPPF. 

Various forms of development are identified by Policy EV2 as being appropriate 

development in the countryside. This includes outdoor sport, outdoor recreation and 

tourism uses (Policy EV2 b). However, the supporting information to the Policy gives 

limited supporting information in relation as to what tourist activity this is associated 

with. Similarly, while the Neighbourhood Plan identifies that ‘Tourism trails’ are an 

opportunity in the SWOT analysis, the Neighbourhood Plan makes no other specific 

reference to tourism.   

The ALPR in Chapter 8 sets out that “the Council recognises that the provision and 

improvement of opportunities for recreation and tourism is of major importance in 

improving the quality of life for the local community and for attracting tourists and 

other visitors to the District”. The objectives in relation to Recreation, Tourism and 

Community Service include the need to consider the potential for tourist-related 

development, particularly in relation to associated recreational benefits.  

This includes a recognition that pressure for tourist accommodation on land outside 

the Main Urban Areas and Named Settlements need to be considered against the 

provisions of Policies EV2. It is also identified in the Ashfield Corporate Plan 2019-23 

that an independent Ashfield Place Board, Discover Ashfield, has been established.  

Their themes include support tourism and the visitor economy in the Ashfield area. 

The NPPF is supportive of a strong local economy, setting out that decisions should 

support sustainable rural tourism and leisure developments that benefit businesses 

in rural areas, subject to them respecting the character of the countryside. This 

includes development and diversification of agricultural and other land-based rural 

business (Para 84).   

Given that the application site is in the countryside, ALPR Policy EV2 looks to ensure 

that development is located and designed so as not to adversely affect the character 

of the countryside, in particular its openness.  

Paragraph 85 of the NPPF sets out that decisions should recognise that sites to 

meet local business and community needs in rural areas may have to be found 

Page 73



adjacent to or beyond existing settlements, and in locations that are not well served 

by public transport. In these circumstances, it will be important to ensure that 

development is sensitive to its surroundings and does not have an unacceptable 

impact on local roads. The use of previously developed land and sites that are 

physically well-related to existing settlements, should be encouraged where suitable 

opportunities exist. 

Whilst Fackley Farm is located outside the Fackley village boundary, as defined by 

the ALPR Proposals Map, it is located in close vicinity to the Village. As well as 

NPPF Paragraph 85, in the case of Julian Wood v SSCLG and Gravesham Borough 

Council it was held by the Supreme Court that the boundary of a village is a matter of 

planning judgement. While a village boundary as defined in a Local Plan would be a 

relevant consideration, it would not necessarily be determinative, particularly in 

circumstances where the boundary as defined did not accord with the assessment of 

the extent of the village on the ground.  

In terms of whether it is a sustainable location, Planning Policy Guidance 13: 

Transport explained that ‘walking is the most important mode of travel at the local 

level and offers the greatest potential to replace short car trips, particularly under 2 

kilometres’. While this document has been replaced by the NPPF, it gives an 

indication of what amounts to a reasonable walking distance. In addition, The 

Institute of Highways and Transportation ‘Guidelines for Providing Journeys on Foot 

(2000)’ sets out that in areas beyond town centres, walking distances of 800-1000m 

are regarded as acceptable. On the basis of these distances, the application site is 

located within walking distance of the facilities within Fackley and the Cooperative 

Retail Store at Stanton Hill. 

As such it is considered that in principle the proposal would represent a sustainable 

and appropriate form of development in this countryside location, in accordance with 

the aforementioned tourist related policies and initiatives. 

 

Amenity: 

8 tourist lodges are proposed as part of this proposal. They will measure 

approximately 10m in length and 5m in width, with an eaves and ridge height of 

approximately 2.4m and 3.2m respectively. 

Each lodge will have two bedrooms and an open plan kitchen-living-dining area, and 

also incorporate a covered veranda area to their frontage. The lodges will present a 

stained timber finish with felt singles utilised for the roof.  

The lodges are located between existing farm buildings to the south, and a raised 

bank (Silverhill Trail) to the north. There will be limited views of the lodges from the 

public Highway of Fackley Road as they will be largely screened by existing 

development on site, with limited views of the site also achievable from the Silverhill 

Trail due to existing vegetation.  

Page 74



To the sites frontage (east) is an existing large paddock, which is separated from the 

public highway by an existing low level mixed hedgerow. A new access road is 

proposed through this area, with a section of hedgerow having to be removed to 

facilitate vehicle access. The new road links up with the existing access along the 

northern boundary of the site. New amenity planting is proposed at the new site 

entrance to help the development assimilate into the surroundings and to reduce the 

potential harm to the street scene. 

Overall due to the siting, size, scale and design of the proposal, it is considered that 

the development would not have a detrimental impact upon the character of the 

street scene, nor detrimentally harm the character and openness of the countryside. 

The nearest residential property to the proposed lodges is located approximately 

70m to the north (Kynance, Fackley Road), although this is separated from the site 

by the former raised railway embankment (Silverhill Trail). Other nearby properties (1 

& 2 Fackley Road) are located approximately 110m to the north east, with others 

(Oaklands, Fackley Road) being approximately 130m to the east. Due to the nature 

of the proposal (short term holiday accommodation) it is considered that there shall 

be a limited impact upon the residential amenity of nearby properties via the use of 

the lodges and the associated comings and goings. 

 

Highways: 

The Highway Authority have provided comments at various stages as to the 

suitability of the proposal, particularly relating to aspects such as the new and 

existing accesses, visibility and parking/manoeuvring etc.  

A new access is proposed for customer use only. The access has been positioned in 

the proposed location to ensure adequate visibility can be achieved at the egress 

point. 2.4m x 43m visibility splays have been demonstrated at the new access (which 

do not conflict with the existing tree to the north west of the access), which the 

Highway Authority are satisfied with. The Highway Authority have also confirmed that 

the new access width is acceptable to allow adequate forward visibility and the safe 

passage of vehicles. 

The existing access point is to remain, and is to be utilised by the site owners only 

for farm/agricultural vehicles. The access gate will be repositioned to include a 20m 

setback from the edge of the carriageway to ensure any farm/agricultural vehicle 

using this access would not impede/block the public highway whilst the gate is open 

and closed. The Highway Authority are happy with this arrangement. 

To the side of the existing access a new bin collection point is proposed. This will 

reflect current waste collection arrangements and also ensure a designated area is 

provided close to the highway to prevent footways becoming blocked on collection 

days. 

Page 75



Alongside the existing access is a public footpath. To ensure the safety of users of 

the footpath, a new 1.2m high timber post and rail fence is to be erected between the 

footpath and the vehicle access. The footpath at this section is also to be widened 

and maintained at a width of 2m, and is to be resurfaced with crushed stone as an 

improvement to the existing bare earth. This is an approach the Rights of Way team 

at Nottinghamshire County Council are happy with.  

Within the site a new parking area is to be provided, allocating 1 parking space per 

lodge. Some additional parking spaces are also provided for ad-hoc usage by 

customers, staff, deliveries etc. 

A new turning head is also provided within the site, which has been designed to 

accommodate cars, delivery vehicles and service vehicles such as refuse vehicles. 

Vehicle tracking plans have also been provided to demonstrate manoeuvring by 

utilising this turning head, which the Highway Authority are satisfied with. 

In accordance with the above, it is considered that the proposal will not detrimentally 

affect highway safety or the capacity of the existing highway network. 

 

Other: 

Natural England identify that the site is within 2km of the Teversal Pastures Site of 

Special Scientific Interest, which is located approximately 1.1km+ away to the north 

east. It has been identified that the aforementioned SSSI is sensitive to water quality, 

and therefore any water or liquid which is discharged into the ground should flow 

away from the SSSI. A condition relating to SuDS details to be submitted and 

approved in writing is therefore suggested. 

Fackley Farm is locally listed, with it being identified that the condition of the property 

was poor at the time of designation. Although no heritage statement has been 

submitted, the farmhouse is currently undergoing improvements. It is also 

considered that the proposal would not detract from the setting and significance of 

the non-designated heritage asset. 

 

Conclusion: 

It is considered that the proposal represents an identified appropriate form of 

development within the countryside, 

The proposal is an appropriate use within the countryside as identified by policy EV2 

of the ALPR, and it is considered that given the size, scale, design and siting of the 

overall proposal, that it will not detrimentally affect the character and openness of the 

countryside, nor detrimentally harm the character of the street scene. 

Furthermore the highway aspects are to the satisfaction of the Highway Authority, 

and therefore it is considered there shall be no significant impact upon highway 

Page 76



safety. The use of a condition to ensure surface water drainage is implemented in a 

manner to avoid harm to the SSSI is also considered appropriate. 

It is therefore recommended this application be granted planning permission, subject 

to the below conditions: 

 

Recommendation: Grant planning permission. 

Conditions: 

1. The development hereby approved shall be begun before the expiration of 3 

years from the date of this permission. 

2. The materials and finishes to be used for the external elevations and roof of 

the proposal shall match those detailed in the submitted application form. 

3. This permission shall be read in accordance with the following plans: Site 

Location Plan, Drawing No.2118/LP Rev.A, Received 04/08/2021. Proposed 

Layout Plan, Drawing No.2118/BP Rev.E, Received 16/09/2021. Proposed 

Elevations and Floor Plans, Drawing No.2118/P1, Received 27/05/2021. The 

development shall thereafter be undertaken in accordance with these plans 

unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

4. Each holiday let hereby permitted shall not be let to, or occupied by, more 

than four persons at any one time. The holiday lets shall not be occupied as 

permanent dwellings and shall not be occupied for more than 28 days in any 

calendar year by any individual person or group of persons. A register of 

occupancy shall be kept and made available for inspection by the Local 

Planning authority on request. 

5. Prior to the lodges being brought onto site full details of drainage plans for the 

disposal of surface water and foul sewage have been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The surface water 

drainage scheme shall include sustainable drainage principles where 

appropriate, and be implemented in accordance with the approved details 

before the development is first brought into use. Any surface water drainage 

plans should take account of comments made by Natural England during the 

determination of this application. 

6. Prior to the hereby permitted development being brought into use a scheme of 

hard and soft landscaping shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. All planting, seeding or turfing indicated on the 

approved landscaping scheme shall be carried out in the first planting and 

seeding seasons following the occupation of the building or the completion of 

the development, whichever is the sooner; and any trees or plants which 

within a period of five years from the completion of the development die, are 

removed or become seriously damaged or diseased, shall be replaced in the 

Page 77



next planting season with others of similar size and species, unless the Local 

Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation. 

7. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be brought into use until all 

drives and any parking or turning areas are surfaced in a hard-bound material 

(not loose gravel) for a minimum of 5.0 metres behind the Highway boundary. 

The surfaced drives and any parking or turning areas shall then be maintained 

in such hard-bound material for the life of the development. 

8. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be brought into use until 

the access driveway is constructed with provision to prevent the discharge of 

surface water from the driveway area to the public highway in accordance 

with details first submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority. The provision to prevent the discharge of surface water to the public 

highway shall then be retained for the life of the development. 

9. No part of the development herby permitted shall be brought into use until 

visibility splays of 2.4meters x 43meters are provided on each side of the 

vehicle access as illustrated on the submitted layout plan (Drawing No. 

2118/BP Rev.E). The area within the visibility splays referred to in this 

condition shall thereafter be kept free of all obstructions, structures or 

erections. 

10. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be brought into use until a 

dropped vehicular footway crossing is available for use and constructed in 

accordance with the Highway Authority specification. 

11. The existing farm access (along the north boundary) shall not be used in 

association with the hereby permitted tourism use, which includes but is not 

limited to customers and deliveries, and shall only be used in association with 

the farming/agricultural enterprise.  

12. Prior to the hereby approved development being brought into use, the gate 

associated with the existing farm access (along the north boundary) shall be 

relocated to the position as shown on the proposed layout plan (Drawing 

No.2118/BP Rev.E). 

 

Reasons: 

1. To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990 as amended. 

2. To ensure the satisfactory appearance of the development. 

3. To ensure that the development takes the form envisaged by the Local 

Planning Authority when determining the application. 

Page 78



4. To enable the Local Planning Authority to maintain satisfactory control of the 

activities involved. 

5. To ensure that the development provides a satisfactory means of drainage, in 

order to reduce the risk of creating; or exacerbating a flooding problem, and to 

minimise the risk of pollution. 

6. To ensure the satisfactory overall appearance of the completed development 

and to help assimilate the new development into its surroundings. 

7. To reduce the possibility of deleterious material being deposited on the public 

highway (loose stones etc). 

8. To ensure surface water from the site is not deposited on the public highway 

causing dangers to road users. 

9. In the interest of general highway safety. 

10. To enable vehicles to enter and leave the public highway in a slow and 

controlled manner and in the interests of general Highway safety. 

11. In the interest of highway safety. 

12. In the interest of highway safety. 

 

Informatives: 

1. The footpath should remain open, unobstructed and be kept on its legal 

alignment at all times. Vehicles should not be parked on the RoW or materials 

unloaded or stored on the RoW so as to obstruct the path.  

2. There should be no disturbance to the surface of the footpath without prior 

authorisation the Rights of Way team. I would be happy if the applicant would 

be amenable to applying a crushed stone surface to the path. I’m happy to 

discuss this further. 

3. If the route is to be fenced, ensure that the appropriate width is given to the 

path and that the fence is low level and open aspect to meet good design 

principles. 

4. If a structure is to be built adjacent to the public footpath, the width of the right 

of way is not to be encroached upon.  

5. Structures cannot be constructed on the line of the right of way without the 

prior authorisation of the Rights of way team. It should be noted that 

structures can only be authorised under certain criteria and such permission is 

not guaranteed. 

Page 79



6. The development makes it necessary to construct a vehicular crossing over a 

footway of the public highway. These works shall be constructed to the 

satisfaction of the Highway Authority. You are, therefore, required to contact 

the County Council’s Highways Area Office tel. 0300 500 8080 to arrange for 

these works to be carried out. 

7. This planning permission does not grant advertisement consent for the display 

of any advert(s)/sign. 

 

Page 80



Ashfield District Council © Crown copyright and database right 2021. Ordnance Survey 100024849

MAP SCALE 1:
CREATED DATE:

1250
17/09/2021

V/2021/0558

Page 81



COMMITTEE DATE 06/10/2021 WARD Underwood 
  
APP REF V/2021/0558 
  
APPLICANT Mr Lewis 
  
PROPOSAL Chimney Flue. 
  
LOCATION The Mews Barn, Land at The Triangle, Felley Mill Lane South, 

Underwood, NG16 5GS. 
  
WEB-LINK https://www.google.com/maps/@53.0502532,-

1.2914475,295m/data=!3m1!1e3 

 

  
BACKGROUND PAPERS A, B, & C. 
 
App Registered: 16/07/2021  Expiry Date: 09/09/2021 
       
Consideration has been given to the Equalities Act 2010 in processing this 
application. 
 
This application has been referred to Planning Committee by Councillor 
Hankin to discuss visual impact on countryside and green belt 
 
 
The Application: 

This is an application for the erection of a chimney stack to an existing dwelling. The 

chimney stack is already in-situ, and the application has been submitted following 

investigations by the planning enforcement team. 

Prior approval for a proposed change of use from agricultural to dwelling was 

granted at appeal (planning application ref X/2017/0049). The site is located within 

the Nottinghamshire Green Belt. 

 

Consultations: 

A site notice has been posted together with individual notifications to surrounding 

residents.  

The following responses have been received: 

Resident comments: 

1 objection has been received, making the following comments: 

Page 82

https://www.google.com/maps/@53.0502532,-1.2914475,295m/data=!3m1!1e3
https://www.google.com/maps/@53.0502532,-1.2914475,295m/data=!3m1!1e3


• Does not meet fire regulations or building regulations due to height of the 

chimney. 

• Is not the size as indicated on the elevation plan. 

• The chimney is next to protected SSSI land, which could cause 

contamination. 

 

Nottinghamshire Wildlife Trust: 

No longer able to provide free ecological advice. No response does not mean no 

objection. 

 

Natural England: 

The application could have potential significant effects on Friezeland Grassland 

SSSI. An assessment of the impacts of gases and particulates released by the 

installation of a flue should be submitted. The fuel to be used, and in what quantity, 

should also be provided. 

 

Policy: 

Having regard to Section 38 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 the 

main policy considerations are as follows: 

 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF): 

Part 12 – Achieving well designed places. 

Part 13 – Protecting the Green Belt. 

Part 15 – Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

 

Ashfield Local Plan Review (ALPR) (2002): 

ST1 – Development. 

ST4 – Remainder of the District. 

EV1 – Green Belt. 

HG7 – Residential extensions.    

 

Page 83



Jacksdale, Underwood and Selston Neighbourhood Plan (2017-2032): 

NP2 – Design principles.  

NP3 – Protecting the landscape character. 

 

Relevant Planning History: 

V/2007/0365 – Stable Block – FULCC. 

V/2008/0626 – Barn – Prior notification unconditional consent. 

X/2016/0060 – Prior approval for change of use from agricultural to dwelling – Prior 

approval refused. 

X/2017/0013 – Prior approval for a proposed change of use from agricultural to 

dwelling – Prior approval refused, appeal dismissed. 

X/2017/0049 – Prior approval for a proposed change of use from agricultural to 

dwelling – Appeal allowed, prior approval granted. 

V/2020/0878 – Prior approval for timber building to house poultry – Refused. 

V/2021/0055 – Prior approval for agricultural storage building – Refused. 

 

Comment: 

Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that, in dealing 

with proposals for planning permission, regard must be had to the provisions of the 

development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any other material 

considerations. Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 

provides that, if regard is to be had to the development plan for any determination, 

then that determination must be made in accordance with the plan, unless material 

considerations indicate otherwise.  Therefore, the starting point for decision-making 

are the policies set out in the Ashfield Local Plan Review 2002 (saved policies).   

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) is a material consideration. The 

policies in the development plan have to be considered in relation to their degree of 

consistency with the provisions of the NPPF (NPPF paragraph 219). This will depend 

on the specific terms of the policies and of the corresponding parts of the NPPF 

when both are read in their full context. An overall judgement must be formed as to 

whether or not development plan policies, taken as a whole, are to be regarded as 

out of date for the purpose of the decision. 

 

Principle of Development: 

Page 84



The application site is located within the Nottinghamshire Green Belt, and as such 

Policy EV1 of the ALPR 2002 and Part 13 (Protecting Green Belt land) of the NPPF 

are applicable. 

Policy EV1 of the ALPR identifies that permission will not be granted for 

inappropriate development in the Green Belt, except in very special circumstances, 

and identifies various forms of ‘appropriate’ development. All development must be 

located and designed so as not to adversely affect the purposes of the Green Belt, 

its openness, and the purposes of including land within it. 

The proposed development is considered to constitute an appropriate use within the 

Green Belt, representing a limited extension/alteration as identified by policy EV1 (b 

iii) of the ALPR 2002. 

Similarly Paragraph 149 of the NPPF identifies that the extension or alteration of a 

building is an appropriate use, providing that the works do not result in 

disproportionate additions over and above the size of the original building. 

The NPPF also states that the fundamental aim of Green Belt policy is to prevent 

urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open, and identifies openness as an 

essential characteristic of the Green Belt (Paragraph 137). It is considered that the 

chimney stack as built, attached to the existing property in its current location, would 

have a limited impact upon the openness of the Green Belt.  

 

Amenity: 

The chimney stack is located on the northern elevation, nearest to the boundary line 

which is comprised on an existing hedgerow. The chimney is constructed from red 

brick and includes a metal cowl, and is set lower than the ridgeline of the existing 

property. After visiting the site, it was observed that the chimney is less visible from 

the street due to the property being set back behind an existing hedgerow. Due to 

the siting, size, scale and design of the chimney, it is considered that the proposal 

would represent a subservient addition to the existing property, and will not 

adversely impact the character and appearance of the area. Additionally it is 

considered that the proposal complies with saved policy ST1(b) of the ALPR and 

NP2 of the Jacksdale, Underwood and Selston Neighbourhood Plan. 

One objection has been received from a neighbouring property, which raises 

concerns in relation to the chimney meeting building regulations requirements due to 

its height. Concerns have also been raised in terms of the accuracy of the submitted 

plans and any potential environmental impact on the nearby SSSI stemming from the 

burning of materials associated with the chimney. 

The applicant has confirmed that the chimney will be used in respect of the central 

heating system which will utilise smokeless fuels. The applicant anticipates they 

would burn no more than one ton of smokeless fuel per year, which would mainly be 

Page 85



in the winter months, which equates to approximately 2.73kg per day. An elevation 

plan and photos have been provided, and a site visit has been undertaken to assess 

the proposal. The applicant confirms the chimney has been built in accordance with 

building regulations requirements, however it is understood the applicant is awaiting 

the outcome of this planning application before seeking formal building regulations 

approval.  

The nearest residential property to the north (5 Mansfield Road) is approximately 

168m away, with the closest residential property to the west (9 Alfreton Road) being 

approximately 218m away. Due to the siting, size, scale and design of the proposal, 

it is considered that the chimney stack will not be detrimental to the living conditions 

of any nearby residential properties. 

The site lies adjacent to the Friezeland Grassland SSSI. Although Natural England 

have requested further information, and Nottinghamshire Wildlife Trust have not 

provided comments on this application, it is considered that the erection of the 

chimney in this location would have a negligible impact on the adjacent SSSI. 

 

Conclusion: 

Based on the above assessment it is considered that the development would have a 

limited impact upon the character and openness of the Green Belt. 

Based on the chimneys siting, size, scale and design, it is considered that it would 

represent a subservient addition to the existing property, and will not adversely 

impact the character and appearance of the area, is unlikely to cause detriment to 

the living conditions of nearby residents, if operated in accordance with the details 

submitted. 

On balance, it is therefore recommended this application be granted planning 

permission, subject to the below conditions: 

 

Recommendation: Grant planning permission. 

Conditions 

1. This permission shall be read in accordance with the following plans and 

details: site location plan, photo of chimney (09/09/21), proposed elevation 

1:100 (13/07/21). The development shall thereafter be undertaken in 

accordance with these plans unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority. 

2. The materials and finishes to be used for the external elevations and roof of 

the proposal shall match those detailed in the submitted application form. 

3. The chimney must only use the fuel as stated by the applicant. 

Page 86



 

 

Reasons 

1. To ensure that the development takes the form envisaged by the Local 

Planning Authority when determining the application. 

2. To ensure the satisfactory appearance of the development. 

3. To ensure no adverse impact upon the environment. 

 

 

 

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of a meeting of the Committee held on 25 August 2021.
	4 To receive and consider the attached planning applications.
	Site Visit Sheet commitee
	October Index
	FINAL - Fishers Close, Sutton
	V_2020_0784
	MTM Fisher Close V_2020_0784 12_08_2021 13_02_47 149398cs
	Earlier Fishers Close report

	FINAL - 54 Oxford Street, Kirkby
	V_2021_0388
	MTM V-2021-0388 - 54 Oxford Street, Kirkbycs

	FINAL - Fackley Farm, Teversal
	V_2021_0421
	V-2021-0421 - Fackley Farm, Fackley Road.doccs

	FINAL - Land at the Triangle, Felley Mill Lane South
	V_2021_0558
	MTM V-2021-0558 - Land at The Triangle, Felley Mill Lane Southcs



